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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Thank you.

          3  With that being said, Council Member White is

          4  running late, so instead of having us here talking

          5  to each other, we are going to open the hearing, and

          6  then he will take over when he comes.  But I will

          7  read his opening statement for him.

          8                 Good afternoon, Council Member White,

          9  the Chair of the Economic Development Committee.

         10  And he would like to welcome you to this oversight

         11  hearing on the New York City's Disconnected Youth

         12  and the Impending Workforce Depletion.

         13                 From today's hearing, the committee

         14  expects to learn how the City is adjusting the

         15  education and employment needs of the 200,000 plus

         16  disconnected youth of our City.  That being 16 to 24

         17  year olds in our City, that are neither in school or

         18  employed.

         19                 The hearing will reveal the

         20  challenges faced by the City agencies, non- profit

         21  organizations and the private sector, successfully

         22  preparing and actively engaging in this segment of

         23  the youth population, and to the workforce.

         24                 In particular, the hearing will look

         25  at the relationship, or lack thereof, the City
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          2  Disconnected Youth to the workforce needs of the

          3  City, on economic growth sectors.

          4                 This hearing was spurred in part, due

          5  to the recent report published by the Center for an

          6  Urban Future, entitled Chances of a Lifetime, which

          7  discusses the high numbers of so called disconnected

          8  youth in relation to the anticipated future large

          9  scale baby boomer retirements, which threatens to

         10  deplete the City's much needed qualified and skilled

         11  labor workforce.

         12                 And today, we are going to hear from

         13  the Administration and some other non- profit group

         14  organizations that are here.  And so, if the

         15  Administration is ready to testify.

         16                 Our first witness is Miguel

         17  Almodovar, Megan Keenan, Roger Scotland.

         18                 MR. ALMODOVAR: Good afternoon,

         19  Assistant Commissioner for Youth Employment

         20  Initiatives at the New York City Department of Youth

         21  and Community Development, DYCD.  I am here on

         22  behalf of Commissioner Jeanne Mullgrav.

         23                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         24  discuss issues of disconnected youth and DYCD's

         25  services, to the City's young adult.
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          2                 As we all know, a path enables a

          3  young person to successfully complete high school,

          4  and to higher education, obtain their first job or

          5  help positively shape a youths life in years to

          6  come.  When this path is not a smooth road, that is

          7  paved when encouraging opportunities for a young

          8  person, it can lead them to separate from families

          9  and institutions.

         10                 Young adults that have become

         11  disconnected from school or the workforce, are a

         12  growing national problem, that continues to rise.

         13  Reports indicate that nationally, one in six, or 3.8

         14  million young adults, ages 18 to 24, are not in

         15  school or not working.  The problem is just as

         16  alarming in New York City, where more than 100,000

         17  youth, ages 16 to 21, are disconnected.

         18                 Therefore, this afternoon, I would

         19  like to share with you, some of the steps DYCD and

         20  this Administration have taken to address this

         21  issue.

         22                 In July 2003, Mayor Bloomberg signed

         23  a legislation, which vested policy Administration of

         24  the City's Youth Employment and Training Programs in

         25  DYCD.  DYCD was entrusted with leading the City's
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          2  efforts to form and integrate youth development

          3  programs, with the delivery of workforce development

          4  services to our young people.  We began by

          5  conducting review of the various programs'

          6  accomplishments, and how these programs align with

          7  the agency's larger goals of promoting self

          8  reliance, life long learning and personal community

          9  well being.

         10                 In Fall 2004, DYCD hosted the Life

         11  Skills, Work Skills Youth Development to Workforce

         12  Development Conference.  This event brought together

         13  more than 200 stakeholders to consider issues

         14  relating to the significant numbers of disconnected

         15  and at risk youth, in the City.  The consensus among

         16  employment government, training providers and

         17  advocates, was that young people can increase their

         18  employment potential, by acquiring basic academic

         19  skills and educational credentials, work readiness

         20  skills and work place experience.

         21                 Also in 2004, DYCD was the soul

         22  funder for two pilot projects with the City

         23  University of New York, CUNY, to serve out of school

         24  youth, ages 16 to 18 without GED's.  CUNY Prep in

         25  the Bronx and Saint Johns University Southern Queens

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  Park Association in Queens, were designated to

          3  assist young people struggling to succeed, in

          4  traditional school environments.

          5                 These programs help youth complete

          6  their high school equivalency and go on to college.

          7  They provide a template for how programs can

          8  operate, and the CUNY prep model was noted by United

          9  States Department of Labor, USDOL, Employment

         10  Training Administration, ETA, in August 2005, as a

         11  best practice model.

         12                 In Spring of 2005, joining our

         13  expertise of leaders in business, youth service

         14  providers, private funders and our own Labor market

         15  research, DYCD formulated a concept paper that

         16  outlined the program approach for New Workforce

         17  Development Contracts.  The concept paper, released

         18  in July 2005, emphasized the following key areas;

         19  school to career, targeted employment, opportunities

         20  and partnerships, youth development and

         21  comprehensive services.

         22                 These efforts led to the release of

         23  the Youth Workforce Development Program request

         24  proposal RFP in November 2005.  The RFP expanded

         25  program priorities, identified in the concept paper,
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          2  by asking programs to encourage youth to graduate

          3  from high school, or obtain a GED, and continue with

          4  higher education, help youth find a critical

          5  connection between education and a successful

          6  career, partner with employers that offer entry

          7  level job, occupational skills training and career

          8  development opportunities.  Target employment

          9  opportunities in high growth sectors, including

         10  construction, health care, customer service, retail,

         11  hospitality, culinary arts, commercial driving and

         12  business services.  And develop strong links to

         13  provide comprehensive counseling and support

         14  services.

         15                 The funding allocation for each

         16  borough is based on a number of youth, ages 16

         17  through 21, who are disconnected, and a number of

         18  low income youth living in households with incomes

         19  below 125 percent of Federal poverty level.

         20                 These criteria resulted in more

         21  diverse and wider geographical distribution of

         22  awards.  In Fiscal Year 2007, nearly eight million

         23  dollars in Workforce Investment Act, WIA, funds,

         24  will support services for approximately one thousand

         25  out of school youth.  The Out of School Youth, OSY
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          2  Programs, begin July 1st 2006. These contracts

          3  include milestones that focus the work of providers

          4  towards meeting performance standards, required by

          5  the United States Department of Labor.  In order to

          6  ensure that providers are well positioned to meet

          7  their goals, DYCD will provide extensive technical

          8  assistance to our contractors through our capacity

          9  building unit.

         10                 These efforts include intensive and

         11  customized assistance limited to SECO, DYCD's

         12  workforce development technical assistance

         13  contractor, on performance management and program

         14  strategies.  The WIA Institute, a series of training

         15  and technical assistance events designed to help Out

         16  of School youth providers begin program operations,

         17  as well as offer training and resources around job

         18  development, performance management and youth

         19  development topics, and presentations by National

         20  experts on WIA performance measures.

         21                 DYCD recognizes that preventing youth

         22  from becoming disconnected is integral to

         23  alleviating this problem.  Therefore, in 2007, 13

         24  million in WIA funds will support In School Youth,

         25  ISY Programs.  Combined, OSY and ISY Programs
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          2  represent the Nation's largest WIA funded youth

          3  workforce development initiative.

          4                 ISY will provide academic enhancement

          5  and work related skills to help students ages 14 to

          6  18, stay in school and fulfill graduation

          7  requirements, as well as obtain the needed skills to

          8  prepare for higher education and the workforce.

          9                 Similarly, New York City's At the

         10  School initiatives, which include the Nationally

         11  recognized Beacon Schools and the Out of School time

         12  programs, our largest municipally funded finance

         13  initiatives of this kind.  These programs proved

         14  youth with academic enrichment, youth leadership,

         15  civic participation, and recreation and cultural

         16  activities, that foster youth development.

         17                 DYCD is in the planning process for

         18  Beacon RFP for lease later this year.  During the

         19  RFP planning, DYCD is exploring ways to engage

         20  disconnected youth to the Beacon programs.

         21                 As you know, DYCD Youth Workforce

         22  Preparation Program is a Summer Youth Employment

         23  Program, SYEP, the largest in the country.  It is

         24  supported by City, State and Federal funds. SYEP

         25  provides youth ages 14 to 21 with summer employment
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          2  and educational experiences, that build on the

          3  individual's strengths and incorporate youth

          4  development principles.

          5                 In summer 2005, more than 41,600

          6  youth enrolled in SYEP, an increase of over 20

          7  percent from the prior year.  This included jobs for

          8  approximately 2000 youth with disabilities.

          9                 Since taking over the administration

         10  for SYEP in 2003, DYCD has made significant

         11  programmatic innovations and technology

         12  advancements.  These enhancements include the

         13  release of an SYEP RFP in January 2004, that

         14  targeted recruitment of participants from high

         15  unemployment areas.  Introduction of an educational

         16  component, enable youth to build life skills

         17  necessary to succeed over the long term, and

         18  implementation of a web based payroll system, where

         19  participants were paid via debit card.  An

         20  electronic payroll system compliments the financial

         21  literacy component in the SYEP curriculum.

         22                 SYEP improvements also include annual

         23  increases in private sector job placements.

         24  Beginning summer 2006, in collaboration with the

         25  youth board, youth council, DYCD developed the
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          2  private sector un-subsidized employment

          3  opportunities for outstanding SYEP participants.

          4  CAPITAL, a public private initiative, will provide

          5  participants with a summer internship in educational

          6  and financial institutions, health care agency,

          7  media and advertising companies, law firms and

          8  professional sports leagues.

          9                 Yesterday we held an event at NASDAQ

         10  to kick off this new initiative.  Approximately 140

         11  business leaders, participating organizations,

         12  employers in CAPITAL youth, attended.

         13                 Building upon DYCD's successful SYEP,

         14  together with the Mayor's Commission on Women's

         15  Issue, we launched NYC Girls Reach.  High school

         16  students participating in our ISY Programs will

         17  intern with successful professional women in the

         18  public and private sectors.  These programs are just

         19  a sample of the public private collaborations DYCD

         20  has undertaken in recent years.

         21                 Coordination of Youth Development and

         22  Workforce Development Services, was further

         23  strengthened with the merger of the Workforce

         24  Investment Boards, Youth Council and DYCD's Youth

         25  Board.  Combining the two entities, created new
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          2  partnerships among service providers, educators,

          3  business leaders and economic development

          4  institutions.

          5                 The Youth Board Council has

          6  identified the need to address older youth

          7  disconnected from the labor market and education

          8  system in New York City, as its primary long term

          9  objective.  This body has played a significant role

         10  in advocating to Federal, State and local

         11  governments, as well as private funders, for

         12  additional resources to support programs for

         13  disconnected youth.

         14                 Another entity that will focus on

         15  disconnected youth in Fiscal Year 2006 is the Inter

         16  Agency Coordinating Council on Youth, ICC, chaired

         17  by Deputy Mayor Dennis Walcott and directed by DYCD

         18  Commissioner Jeanie Mullgrav.  The mission of ICC is

         19  to promote inter-agency collaboration on issues

         20  relevant to the New York City's youth.

         21                 In September 2005, the ICC

         22  disconnected Youth Work Group was established, and

         23  tasked with coordinating access to programs and

         24  services, in developing a model program to serve

         25  disconnected youth.  Along with Deputy Mayor's
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          2  office for education and community development, DYCD

          3  Co-Chairs its work group.

          4                 Other participants include the

          5  Department of Juvenile Justice, Administration for

          6  Children's Services, Department of Correction,

          7  Department of Education, New York City Housing

          8  Authority, The Youth Board, and the Brooklyn, New

          9  York and Queens Public Libraries.

         10                 The work group held several strategic

         11  planning meetings including February 2006 sessions

         12  titled, Developing Effective Programs and Services

         13  for Disconnected Youth, to hear from service

         14  providers, researchers, stakeholders and youth on

         15  suggestions to address this issue.  DYCD compiled

         16  the recommendations into a report, to help frame a

         17  model program for disconnected youth.

         18                 In addition to the ICC, Mayor

         19  Bloomberg also established Commission on

         20  Construction Opportunity and the Commission for

         21  Economic Opportunity.  Both are charged with

         22  developing public private strategies to open up

         23  employment opportunities for low income individuals

         24  and families, re- engaging disconnected youth as a

         25  primary focus of these Commission's efforts.  DYCD
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          2  is involved with both Commissions' activities. Given

          3  that we are the designated Community Action Agency,

          4  CAA, for New York City.

          5                 As a CAA, DYCD administers the

          6  Federal Community Service Block Grant, CSBG, funding

          7  that focuses resources to address specific poverty

          8  issues at the neighborhood level.  CSBG funds

          9  supports more than 440 programs, in areas such as,

         10  academic support, youth leadership activities,

         11  economic development, employment opportunities,

         12  senior services, housing assistance, literacy and

         13  immigrant support.

         14                 At a time when federal funding is

         15  declining, the City has sought other resources.

         16  Recently, DYCD applied for additional WIA funds,

         17  offered through New York State office of Children

         18  and Family Services, Partnership for Youth RFP, to

         19  serve additional Out of School Youth.

         20                 These are just some of the actions

         21  DYCD and the Bloomberg Administration have taken to

         22  re- engage youth in the educational system or labor

         23  force.  As a lead agency of the City's Youth

         24  Employment Programs, DYCD's goal is to provide young

         25  people with full compliment of career exploration
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          2  and skill building opportunities.

          3                 These programs assist youth in

          4  completing their education and preparing for,

          5  obtaining and maintaining employment, thereby making

          6  a successful transition into adulthood.

          7                 Since taking on the responsibility of

          8  administering the City's Youth Employment Programs,

          9  DYCD has made tremendous strides in reforming the

         10  delivery of Youth Workforce Development Service.

         11  But we will not stop here.  We will continue to

         12  review and enhance our Youth Workforce Development

         13  Services by maximizing the limited resources, to

         14  provide high quality programming to our youth.

         15                 Ours is not a lone effort, rather a

         16  collective one with many partners in government,

         17  non- profit, private sector and the philanthropic

         18  community.  And it must continue to be a cooperative

         19  effort, that will lead to reconnecting our young

         20  people to quality services, education advancement,

         21  career opportunities with the support of caring

         22  adults.

         23                 Thank you for the opportunity to come

         24  before you today.

         25                 I am joined by Megan Keenan, DYCD's
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          2  Director of Out of School Youth Initiatives, and

          3  Roger Scotland, Co-Chair of the ICC Disconnected

          4  Youth Work Group, also Policy Advisor to Deputy

          5  Mayor Dennis Walcott.  We are pleased to answer any

          6  questions or address any comments that you may have.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Does Ms.

          8  Keenan and Roger, do you have testimony or --  you

          9  are just available to answer questions.

         10                 Before we go to our questioning, I

         11  would like to recognize that we have been joined by

         12  Council Member Letitia James from Brooklyn.

         13                 In your testimony, you spoke of the

         14  programs that are put forward by DYCD through Summer

         15  Youth Employment, and to engage disconnected youth.

         16  Can you explain to us how does the youth get this

         17  information?  How do, do they know about these

         18  programs?  What kind of outreach is the Department

         19  doing or the agency is doing in terms of to make

         20  sure that youth are aware that these programs are

         21  out there?

         22                 MR. ALMODOVAR: As you know, we do not

         23  provide the direct services to the community.  We

         24  contract out to community based organizations.  They

         25  are actively recruiting.  They, obviously, go out to
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          2  the streets and speak to where the young people are,

          3  in order to recruit the population to talk and to

          4  seminate information on programs that DYCD runs.

          5                 We also have information on our

          6  website, so if a young person gets access to a

          7  computer, they can find a lot of information on the

          8  internet.  Also obviously, 311.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Do you

         10  follow up with, or do you have guidelines for the

         11  community- based organizations in terms of asking a

         12  certain criteria done on how to do the outreach? And

         13  do you follow up to see how many youth are being

         14  serviced or how many people are taking advantage of

         15  the services?

         16                 MR. ALMODOVAR: We have obvious

         17  contractual obligations as to numbers that we are

         18  able to serve.  But we also share best practices

         19  among the community providers, in order to do that

         20  recruitment properly, and in order to share

         21  resources with each other.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: And so do

         23  you have a number of how many youth are being

         24  serviced at this point?  Do you know?

         25                 MR. ALMODOVAR: For --

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: For --

          3                 MR. ALMODOVAR: For the upcoming

          4  Fiscal Year?

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Right.

          6                 MR. SCOTLAND: It is going to be

          7  approximately a thousand on the out of school youth,

          8  WIA Program, 4500 on the In School Youth program.

          9  We are going to approximately mirror last year's

         10  Summer Youth Program, the Out of School Time and

         11  Beacon programs, are pretty much set, as far as the

         12  numbers they had last year.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: The out of

         14  school youth, are these kids that are not going to

         15  school that just either have a GED, have graduated,

         16  have not gone on to college, or do not have a GED

         17  and just have kind of fallen through the cracks?

         18                 MS. KEENAN: They mostly have fallen

         19  through the cracks.  They are disconnected from

         20  school and from work.  And by and large, they do not

         21  have GEDs or High School diplomas.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: What

         23  happens to those kids who are at an educational

         24  disadvantage who do not have ways of getting in

         25  front of a computer or are not educated enough to
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          2  know how to operate a computer?  How would they, how

          3  are we getting to them?

          4                 MS. KEENAN: In the WIA OSY program, I

          5  think it is safe to say that even if the

          6  occupational training that a program is offering is

          7  not directly related to computer networking or what

          8  have you.  All of the programs offer some basic

          9  computer literacy or integrate that in some way into

         10  their program.

         11                 MR. SCOTLAND: I think one of the

         12  questions you are asking, is also concerning

         13  outreach.  As Assistant Commissioner Almodovar

         14  mentioned, all of our agencies compete via RFP, and

         15  they are awarded a contract based on their response.

         16    They are then provided technical assistance, and

         17  they have a strategy that they have to share with

         18  the Department of Youth and Community Development on

         19  how they will do street outreach, how they will

         20  reach out to faith- based institutions, how they

         21  will work with the New York, Brooklyn and Queens

         22  Public Libraries.  So, there is an active engagement

         23  on the street level.  It is not just via DYCD's

         24  website.  Or if you come to a specific community

         25  center.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Right.

          3                 MR. SCOTLAND: We go to those persons,

          4  as well.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: In your

          6  experience in doing this, what has been the most

          7  successful type of outreach to get to these youth?

          8                 MR. ALMODOVAR: I think I should

          9  answer that one, since I was running programs in

         10  South Bronx.

         11                 It is actual adults going out to the

         12  street.  Being out there at the time period when the

         13  young person is out there. So, if you are out there

         14  at one o'clock in the morning, where the young

         15  people are, that is what it takes in order to

         16  recruit.  And that is what you do.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Okay.  And

         18  you have done that?

         19                 MR. ALMODOVAR: Yes.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA:

         21  Congratulations.  We need more people like you out

         22  there.

         23                 In the Out of School Youth, that

         24  program, that runs year round?  Or is it specific to

         25  a certain time of year?
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          2                 MS. KEENAN: It runs year round and

          3  most providers have training cycles.  So, the

          4  training program may last three months, six months,

          5  whatever it is.  But they are recruiting all the

          6  time.  I think it is also important to add that

          7  under the Workforce Investment Act, twelve months of

          8  follow up services are provided.  So, even after a

          9  young person is placed in a job, or gets a GED and

         10  goes to college, twelve months of follow up are

         11  provided for them.  So, it is a lengthy program.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: You had

         13  mentioned the projected number for this Fiscal Year

         14  as 1,000, 1,300?  How can we expand that number?  Is

         15  the agency, or the administration looking to expand

         16  the number, in terms of getting more money into the

         17  budget, do more outreach, or is that just the number

         18  you are working with right now?

         19                 MR. SCOTLAND: That is the funding

         20  that we have right now for the WIA program.

         21  Obviously, we try to diversify as best as possible

         22  with other funding streams, similar to the way we do

         23  SYEP in diversifying our funding to try to maximize

         24  and leverage as many resources as possible.

         25                 We did submit an RFP to New York
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          2  State to get additional funding for Out of School

          3  Youth.  So, we are looking at other avenues, in

          4  order to get additional funding for it.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Can you

          6  describe some of the challenges you face in terms

          7  of, or are you away from the people who are

          8  providing the services, of some of the challenges

          9  they face when approaching these youth who have been

         10  disconnected, or who are disconnected, who have been

         11  out of school, and are now being proposed to either

         12  engage in a GED program and to the workforce?

         13                 MS. KEENAN: Well, for the Workforce

         14  Investment Act, there is an income eligibility

         15  requirement, and then there are what the legislation

         16  refers to as barriers to employment, or education

         17  that a young person would have.

         18                 But I think that what our contractors

         19  tell us is that young people come to them without

         20  stable housing.  They have children of their own.

         21  They have not had success in school.  They may not

         22  have adults in their life that are able or willing

         23  to help them in the process of growing up and

         24  completing their education. And I would say that

         25  they come with, most of them come with multiple
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          2  barriers into the program.  So, it is a lot of, it

          3  is good work and the contractors really love to do

          4  it, but they face a lot of challenges.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Out of the

          6  youth that are being serviced, how many do you

          7  estimate come from the foster care system?

          8                 MR. SCOTLAND: That is hard to say,

          9  because the position of the Administration has been

         10  to place youth with their families.  So, we

         11  acknowledge that children in the foster care system,

         12  and children aging out of the foster care system, is

         13  an area of great concern for us.  I do not have

         14  specific numbers, but through inter agency and

         15  coordinating councils like the ICC, ACS is working

         16  with us.  We are targeting specific communities and

         17  looking at different ways that we can serve young

         18  adults coming out of the foster care system, to make

         19  sure that they are tied into programs, like our WIA

         20  Out of School Youth programs, that they are taking

         21  full advantage of other programs the DYCD may offer

         22  through its contract agencies, referrals through

         23  SBS.  We work very closely with all of our sister

         24  agencies that are under Mayoral patrol.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: And I am
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          2  going to ask the last question, and then I will turn

          3  it over to Council Member James, for any questions,

          4  and then I can come back.

          5                 But, for youth that are in school,

          6  that are still in high school, but either get some,

          7  you know, wait until June to get their summer jobs

          8  between July and August, what is the plan for them

          9  to be able to try to, I know you spoke about getting

         10  them ready to either enter college or the workforce.

         11    Is there plans, like help them obtain jobs during

         12  the school year, like after --?

         13                 MR. ALMODOVAR: With DYCD, they have a

         14  comprehensive approach to employment.  You have

         15  learned of the Out of Youth program.  There is also

         16  the In School Youth program which is year round,

         17  which incorporates traditional youth development

         18  principals. The difference with ISY, is that there

         19  is a guaranteed job during the summer time.  The

         20  SYEP program you have up until May 31st, June 1st,

         21  to apply.  So, that is a separate cohort of youth.

         22  I think last year we reached about 41,000 in total

         23  that are able to benefit.

         24                 One of the ties to, or one of the

         25  obligations of being contracted by the City to run

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  SYEP, is it is implied that you will reach out to

          3  them, and you will work with them through the year.

          4  So, although a young person's employment may end in

          5  April, it is expected that you will build that

          6  relationship, and you will provide college

          7  exploration, career exploration, and do all the

          8  other things that the community- based organizations

          9  do year round. So it is a year round strategy.  Many

         10  young people that are in the CBO's, they will tell

         11  you that they started since the age of six, whatever

         12  the legal age that they can come into a space, is

         13  depending on the type of program, and they stay with

         14  our programs. When they reach teenage years,

         15  sometimes they drop out and come back, and many

         16  times when they drop out, that is where we have a

         17  problem of trying to re- engage young people and

         18  trying to get that positive, caring adult in their

         19  lives.  So, it is a comprehensive strategy that we

         20  have.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Okay.

         22                 Council Member, do you --?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Good afternoon.

         24    I attended a meeting this morning hosted by the

         25  Brooklyn Chamber of Commerce, where it talked about
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          2  the Brooklyn Market Review and its labor force.

          3                 First, let me apologize for being

          4  very parochial. But at this morning's meeting, it

          5  talked about the growing sector of jobs in the

          6  Borough of Brooklyn which includes health care,

          7  social assistance, retail, government,

          8  manufacturing, construction. And it talked about a

          9  slight increase in the number of jobs over the past

         10  year in the Borough of Brooklyn, in these leading

         11  sectors.            But it also went on to talk

         12  about construction opportunities in the Borough of

         13  Brooklyn, and despite the fact that we have had a

         14  number of construction projects in Brooklyn, the

         15  borough has not benefited from a corresponding jump

         16  in jobs, for local residents.

         17                 Which brings me to my question.  I

         18  understand that the Mayor has commissioned this

         19  construction trade 2000 or whatever, of which the

         20  City Council is not a part of.  And the question is,

         21  whether or not, I do not know when the report will

         22  come out, perhaps you can shed some light on this

         23  report, and whether or not there is going to be any

         24  requirement that jobs in the Borough of Brooklyn,

         25  whether or not there is any nexus or tie to the
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          2  local residents, including "dis-affected youth".

          3                 MR. ALMODOVAR: I have not seen the

          4  report, but I am familiar with the commission, my

          5  Deputy Mayor Coach hears it, Deputy Mayor Walcott.

          6  As a part of the strategy with that commission, is

          7  to provide apprenticeship opportunities, so you can

          8  have union positions, full union positions moving

          9  forward.  It is a process.  And STRIVE is working

         10  very closely with the administration under contract,

         11  NYCHA, as well, in screening and placing adults.

         12  There were ads placed in, I believe every major

         13  newspaper and many of the local newspapers.  So it

         14  is, the strategy was how do you create long term

         15  employment, versus providing a labor opportunity

         16  where you can come in and gut a building, and then

         17  you do not have a trade, you do not have a skill and

         18  you are unemployed moving forward?

         19                 So, you may not see it immediately.

         20  One of the things that I have learned, was that at

         21  first thought, in speaking with many of the

         22  community leaders, they thought many persons would

         23  be coming in without GED's, and would need that

         24  preparation.  Many came in with GED's.  So, now you

         25  have to revisit how you move things along the
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          2  calendar, in order to get them on to the job sites.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I guess my

          4  question is, is there a commitment from the

          5  construction trades to hire people from the

          6  community where the projects are being constructed?

          7  That is the basic question.

          8                 MR. ALMODOVAR: I would imagine so.  I

          9  cannot speak to that.  I have not been in on those

         10  conversations.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Do you have any

         12  idea when that report, or when those recommendations

         13  will be coming out?

         14                 MR. ALMODOVAR: No, I do not.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.  The WIA

         16  funds, the Federal budget, I believe they have come

         17  out with their Federal budget.  Is there an increase

         18  in WIA funds?

         19                 MR. ALMODOVAR: No.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Was there a

         21  decrease in WIA funds?

         22                 MS. KEENAN: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.  A

         24  significant decrease in WIA funds?

         25                 MR. ALMODOVAR: A fifteen percent cut.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: A fifteen

          3  percent cut?  To what extent will that impact on the

          4  programs here in the City of New York?

          5                 MR. ALMODOVAR: We will be serving

          6  less youth because of that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: To that extent,

          8  I have been critical of OST.  In fact, last night I

          9  attended a meeting in -- I represent Downtown

         10  Brooklyn, Fort Green, Clinton Hill, Prospect Heights

         11  and Crown Heights.  I have a very interesting

         12  district.  I have pockets of great prosperity,

         13  million dollar brownstones surrounded by great

         14  poverty.  And in the public housing complex, which

         15  is surrounded by these million dollar brownstones,

         16  they were denied, they were not given any OST

         17  programs, because we tend to look at census numbers

         18  and we look at zip codes, and it tends to belie what

         19  is actually happening in the district.

         20                 And so, the brownstone community, the

         21  million dollar brownstones, unfortunately where

         22  there is this incredible amount of wealth, over

         23  shadow the poverty.  And therefore, the residents of

         24  public housing were at 70 percent unemployment, did

         25  not get OST funds, and did not get a lot of funds
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          2  from your agency.

          3                 What are we doing to look at other

          4  data, besides census data, which unfortunately

          5  cannot look at these pockets of poverty, which are

          6  again, over shadowed by the increasing wealth in the

          7  community?  And of course, as a result of the

          8  gentrification and everything else that is happening

          9  in Downtown Brooklyn, my under served communities

         10  are being overlooked.  It is a major, major problem.

         11    It was a problem in OST, a problem in the summer

         12  school, Summer Youth Program and a problem with

         13  regards to all of the programs at all of the City

         14  agencies, not just limited to your agency, because

         15  we only look at census data, as opposed to block by

         16  block, or any other kind of data, which could

         17  indicate what is happening on the local level.

         18                 MR. ALMODOVAR: The examination of

         19  actual zip codes and also borough based allocations,

         20  that has shifted a lot of funding that used to go

         21  into Manhattan into Brooklyn and the Bronx, which

         22  are areas that we saw as highest needs.  So, that

         23  information, we actually got though census

         24  information.  And until we are able to get some

         25  additional information, that is basically where we
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          2  are right now.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I would urge

          4  you again, look at those districts where again,

          5  under served communities exist side by side, with

          6  more prosperous neighborhoods and look at more

          7  detailed data, which focuses on really what is

          8  happening on the ground.

          9                 I believe we should look at the

         10  problem regarding disaffected youth holistically.

         11  You know, I was reading the testimony of a

         12  vocational foundation which was once in my district,

         13  but unfortunately, because of what is happening in

         14  my district, they were displaced, and had to

         15  relocate to Manhattan.  But a lot of the children,

         16  young adults in my community, suffer from families

         17  which are disintegrating.  They have got a

         18  significant amount of problems, gang problems,

         19  housing is a significant problem, the crisis in

         20  affordable housing.  The fact that they are dropping

         21  out of school in record numbers, so training is one

         22  part of it, but there are so many other issues

         23  related to their lives that is happening in their

         24  lives.  So, to what extent are we coordinating with

         25  other agencies to provide, again, to approach this

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  in a holistic fashion?

          3                 Mr. SCOTLAND: We had mentioned the

          4  ICC and with respect to the specific work group that

          5  Miguel and I co- chair, the other City agencies that

          6  sit on that work group, are corrections and

          7  probation, ACS, NYCHA, HRA.  So, we understand as

          8  Commissioner of HRA states, when you see one person,

          9  you are actually looking at seven.  Because it is a

         10  family, and there are various needs that family has.

         11    We are looking at how do we better communicate

         12  with each other to solve some of those hanging fruit

         13  problems.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.

         15                 MR. SCOTLAND: And so, it is a

         16  process.  The culture of this Administration, is to

         17  work with our other agencies to work with the

         18  Council, to work with our not for profit ad, and our

         19  advocates, as well.  So, we are looking at the

         20  problem in a holistic sense, and we are trying to

         21  get everyone around the table.

         22                 We were looking at developing a model

         23  program, or we are in the process of developing a

         24  model program, to serve disconnected young adults.

         25  Something that can be replicated throughout the City
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          2  and beyond reaching out to providers to tell us what

          3  we need to do.  We also reached out to other City

          4  agencies to ask them, quite frankly, what are some

          5  of the things that you feel you can be doing better?

          6    What are areas of black out where you can use the

          7  assistance of other City officials to help you

          8  navigate the lines of communication or the hurdles,

          9  or whatever it might be?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Is HPD part of

         11  this coordinated effort?

         12                 MR. SCOTLAND: HPD, are they part of

         13  the ICC? I do not believe so.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: How about DOE?

         15                 MR. SCOTLAND: Yes, they are.  They

         16  are, the Department of Education.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: What about

         18  Economic Development?

         19                 MR. SCOTLAND: We are actually

         20  partnering with the EDC on their project in BedStuy

         21  (sic.), the Comprehensive Development Program.  We

         22  understand very well, that there is a tie between

         23  poverty, economic opportunity, job placement and

         24  some kind of social support network.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: As you know,
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          2  the Black Puerto Rican and Asian caucus of the City

          3  Council came forth with an initiative, to address

          4  the high rate of unemployment, as a result of a

          5  report prepared by the Community Service Society.

          6  To what extent are you working with, and I believe

          7  the conduit is United Way, to what extent are you

          8  working with United Way, to get some of the funds

          9  that we appropriated to address the high rate of

         10  unemployment of youth, disaffected youth, as well as

         11  men and women of color, who are suffering high rates

         12  of unemployment.  To what extent are these community

         13  based organizations working with their agency, to

         14  access some of these funds that we have set aside?

         15                 MR. ALMODOVAR: We have been trying,

         16  and have and met with staff of United Way, in order

         17  to make sure we do not duplicate services.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right.

         19                 MR. ALMODOVAR: We offer our capacity

         20  building and assistance within the agency.  We have

         21  a meeting, in fact, set up in three weeks with

         22  United Way to follow through with that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

         24  Excellent.  And again, I am focusing on those

         25  pockets of poverty in my district,
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          2  Ingersoll-Whitman, Farragut, parts of Bedford

          3  Stuyvesant and Crown Heights, the two extremes of my

          4  district, again, which are on the periphery of these

          5  million dollar brownstones.  So, again, if you could

          6   -- I would love to work with the community- based

          7  organizations that service those communities, and

          8  try to advocate, on behalf of those organizations

          9  getting funds through United Way.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 MR. ALMODOVAR: Thank you.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Thank you.

         13                 I want to recognize that we have been

         14  joined by Council Member Al Vann and David Yasky who

         15  is also present.

         16                 Council Member Vann, questions?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Thank you, Madam

         18  Chair.

         19                 Good afternoon.  Sorry I am late.

         20  Would you repeat everything you said before I came?

         21  I guess not.  Okay.  I understand that.

         22                 Reading over your testimony very

         23  quickly, it seems that in recognition of the more

         24  than 200,000 young adults that are disconnected, as

         25  it were, it appears the Administration began to like
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          2  tune up, in regards to getting you information about

          3  who they are, what they need, based on what I am

          4  reading here.

          5                 And in 2004, apparently you funded

          6  two pilot projects through CUNY, it says, one in the

          7  Bronx and one I guess, in Queens.  Is that correct?

          8                 MR. ALMODOVAR: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: How many people

         10  were served in the pilots, and what did you learn

         11  from that?

         12                 MR. ALMODOVAR: Sorry about that.

         13                 There are over 200 in the Bronx a

         14  year, about 100 in Queens through Project Reconnect,

         15  that is at Saint Johns, Southern Queens Park

         16  Association.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Well, the

         18  purpose of the pilot was to --

         19                 MR. ALMODOVAR: Get GED's and move

         20  them on to college.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: So, actually the

         22  pilot was just a program to begin to deal with the

         23  extraordinary number.  It was not just to find out

         24  what to do and how to do it better, so that you

         25  could expand it throughout the City?  It was just a
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          2  program to deal with those populations?

          3                 MR. ALMODOVAR: It was an innovative

          4  program.  It actually came out well before the

          5  Community Society's report on disconnected youth, in

          6  order to deal with the population at hand, trying to

          7  move a young person who has dropped out of school,

          8  and move them into post secondary education.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I understand,

         10  and I am with you.  I am just trying to see if we

         11  know that we got 200,000 and we come up with a

         12  program to service two or three hundred, that seems

         13  awfully inadequate.  I thought that this was a model

         14  to see how well or how we can really affect and get

         15  to this constituency.  I did not know it was a

         16  program to really serve their needs.  Because if

         17  that is the case, obviously, it lacked scope,

         18  resources, vision.

         19                 MR. ALMODOVAR: The money came out of

         20  the WIA funds and as we explained earlier, we did

         21  get a cut on WIA funds.  So, it is incorporated into

         22  it, and that is how we were able to implement both

         23  of those projects.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: And only those

         25  projects?
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          2                 Okay, moving forward, because I

          3  thought that led to the RFP that you put out in

          4  November of 2005.  You said that you expanded on

          5  program priorities identified in the concept paper.

          6  The RFP, did you actually fund new programs, or did

          7  you put money into existing programs?  It is not

          8  clear to me reading this.

          9                 MS. KEENAN: We did both.  We funded

         10  some providers that we already had in our portfolio

         11  and we added some new providers also.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Okay.  How much

         13  new money was made available as a result of this RFP

         14  in November 2005?

         15                 MS. KEENAN: The funding for the RFP

         16  was $7.8 million dollars in total for program

         17  services.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: 7.8 mil (sic,)

         19  okay.

         20                 So, do you have any idea at this

         21  point as a result of what of this particular RFP and

         22  any other things that you might be doing?  What

         23  percentage of this 200,000 people you will be

         24  beginning to make some kind of engagement or contact

         25  with?  Do you have that?
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          2                 MS. KEENAN: Our new portfolio starts

          3  this July 1st and we expect to serve around 1,000

          4  young people.  Historically, or for the last

          5  complete program that we have data, that we reported

          6  to the New York State Department of Labor, we met

          7  all of our performance standards for the WIA

          8  program.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Okay.  If I

         10  understood you correctly, of the identified 200,000

         11  people that we say are disconnected, between ages of

         12  18 and 24, whatever it is, that thus far, you have

         13  been able to make contact with about 1,000?

         14                 MS. KEENAN: That is going forward.

         15  For the program year that we are in right now, we

         16  served about 1200 young people, which I would say we

         17  have been able to serve in the Out of School Youth

         18  Program, I think a maximum of 1500 people.  And each

         19  year that our funding is cut, obviously, we serve

         20  fewer people through that program.

         21                 MR. ALMODOVAR: Now that just takes

         22  into account the finance available through the WIA

         23  funding for Out of School Youth as targeted for that

         24  specific population.  Obviously, you have to look at

         25  SYEP that also services the age group, the Beacon
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          2  schools that we are looking roll out with the new

          3  RFP that is going to be focusing also on

          4  disconnected youth.  So, those numbers are going to

          5  dramatically raise.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Okay, so you

          7  feel this comprehensive effort, including all of the

          8  various agencies and what they are doing with youth,

          9  you feel that this is a good and confident strategy

         10  to begin to deal with this population in terms of

         11  identifying them and bringing them into some type of

         12  program to try and make them "employable"?

         13                 MR. ALMODOVAR: The thing is, we also

         14  have to take into account, we are looking at a

         15  partnership with our not for profits, the funding

         16  organizations, the foundations, in order to make end

         17  roads into, as you mentioned, large numbers of

         18  disconnected youth.

         19                 MR. SCOTLAND: And at the same time,

         20  Council Member, we also have to look at the efforts

         21  of the office of Multiple Pathways at the Department

         22  of Education, and what they are trying to do, and

         23  the successes that they are trying to build on now,

         24  as well as the efforts of the Department of Small

         25  Business Services.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: So, it is your

          3  responsibility at DYCD to collaborate and coordinate

          4  all of the various programs that are targeting this

          5  population?

          6                 MR. SCOTLAND: We are taking the lead

          7  on that, yes. The Coordinating Council through

          8  working with DSBS in order to make sure the youth

          9  are being met at the one stops that they have

         10  developed.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: So, there is a

         12  coordinating structure in the Administration to

         13  provide for the collaboration, if you will, of all

         14  these various agencies?

         15                 MR. SCOTLAND: Through the ICC, yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I beg your

         17  pardon?

         18                 MR. SCOTLAND: Through the ICC.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: The ICC.

         20                 MR. SCOTLAND: Inter Agency

         21  Coordinating Council.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Who chairs that

         23  Council?

         24                 MR. ALMODOVAR: Deputy Mayor Dennis

         25  Walcott and the daily effort is led my Commissioner
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          2  Jeanie Mullgrav of DYCD.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Okay, thank you

          4  very much. Thank you.

          5                 MR. ALMODOVAR: Thank you, Sir.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Okay, I

          7  have a couple of more questions and then we will let

          8  you out of the hot seat.

          9                 With the baby boomers coming into

         10  retirement, where do you see the City's economic

         11  sector, given that we have a large population now of

         12  disconnected youth?

         13                 MR. SCOTLAND: Obviously, that is what

         14  we are trying to do as far as train our young

         15  people, and a major step, obviously, is two fold, is

         16  trying to make sure that the young people that we

         17  have in school right now, stay in school, and those

         18  who have dropped out, to try and re- engage them

         19  into activities with that. We are working very

         20  closely with the Department of Small Business

         21  through their Workforce One Centers, that are to

         22  meet those needs of employers.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: So, what

         24  workforce development services have been targeted

         25  for this population, and I want to mention some
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          2  because I want to know if they have been targeted.

          3  In the areas of health care, construction,

          4  automotive, maintenance, commercial driving, science

          5  and technology, aviation and manufacturing, I think

          6  I did not mention public office here.

          7                 MS. KEENAN: In the RFP, we focused on

          8  high growth sectors, which included retail customer

          9  service, hotel, hospitality, health care and

         10  construction.  We also left it open for providers to

         11  tell us if they had an occupation or a training that

         12  they really liked in another field, that they could

         13  propose that to us.  So, we also, through our

         14  providers, are going to be having training and

         15  information technology, some in business services,

         16  commercial driving.  We have pharmacy technicians,

         17  we have quite a broad range of occupational training

         18  that will be offered in the high growth sectors,

         19  that we identified in the RFP, and also some of the

         20  ones that you mentioned.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: And can you

         22  just elaborate just a little bit more about the

         23  Inter Agency Coordinating Council? I know they put

         24  out a report.  Can you give us an update on that?

         25                 MR. ALMODOVAR: The report should be
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          2  coming out at the end of this month actually.  And

          3  again, it is going to highlight basically, all the

          4  work that the ICC has done for the past year with

          5  the focus being on disconnected youth.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: And --

          7                 MR. ALMODOVAR: With the ICC there,

          8  this was just one of the work groups that we had.

          9  There was also another work group on court involved

         10  youth, at another one of our after school programs,

         11  as a whole, which speaks to the Beacon programs and

         12  the restructuring of the Beacons, to also target

         13  young adults.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: And in that

         15  report, are teenage mothers included and homeless

         16  youth?  Are they also included in the report?

         17                 MR. SCOTLAND: We may touch upon it,

         18  but the annual report for the ICC reports back on

         19  the year's meetings and efforts of the various work

         20  groups that comprise of the ICC.  But, those are

         21  topics and issues that DYCD combats daily through

         22  its office of runaway and homeless youth.

         23                 Commissioner Mullgrav has done a

         24  wonderful job, if I may say, of making sure she has

         25  a pulse of what is happening in our community.  She
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          2  is out every day.  She is meeting with the

          3  providers.  She is meeting with the young people.

          4  As you can see, we have retained staff that have an

          5  understanding of the communities, that come from the

          6  communities and reflect the ethnic composition of

          7  the communities, as well.  So, it is a process, we

          8  are trying.  Things can be done better.  I would ask

          9  Council Member James to please let us know the

         10  pockets, because beyond looking at census tracks, we

         11  also take a look at the borough itself, and on the

         12  block by block level.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: All right.

         14  And I would take the liberty on behalf of Council

         15  Member White, to ask Mr. Almodovar if the agency can

         16  share with us any information on the questions.  And

         17  especially that target population that I just

         18  raised.

         19                 And then, I know you must be aware

         20  that the Black Latino Nation Caucus has championed

         21  getting money from the NYC Works.  Does any of these

         22  programs benefit from any of that money?

         23                 MR. SCOTLAND: Well, there is some

         24  overlap between NYC Works and obviously the agencies

         25  that we contract.  If you want to contract from the
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          2  City, then it means that you presented a good

          3  proposal.  You have a good body of work.  You have a

          4  track record. These are the same agencies that

          5  competed for the additional funding.

          6                 As Ms. Keenan suggested, the WIA

          7  monies have been under assault for years.  And our

          8  Federal programs are tied to that funding.  So, all

          9  of our agencies look to supplement whatever

         10  resources they get from the City through the WIA

         11  money or through the CTL funds.  So, we are trying

         12  to make sure that there is no necessary redundancy,

         13  but we can coordinate our services and make sure we

         14  get the most bang for the buck.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Okay.  And

         16  I think Council Member Vann has some more questions.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Redundancy is

         18  not necessarily bad, by the way.

         19                 MR. SCOTLAND: Right.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I was just

         21  wondering that of these disconnected youth, I would

         22  venture to say that probably maybe 90 percent or

         23  maybe higher of those youth would be, could be

         24  identified with the airs of the City of highest

         25  unemployment, greatest rate of poverty, lowest level
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          2  of educational achievements and so on and so forth.

          3  So we know, and from our previous work with another

          4  Committee, we know that we can identify the pockets,

          5  if you will, the communities, the neighborhoods,

          6  where these young people live and hang out.

          7                 Therefore, is it within your scope to

          8  try and target, since you have an inter agency

          9  Council, where you can coordinate all the agencies?

         10  Is it also part of your plan to target those

         11  resources where you can get the greatest impact in

         12  identifying community- based organizations that are

         13  actually in those communities where the young people

         14  who are disconnected?  Is that part of your

         15  strategy, or could you adjust your coordination to

         16  make sure that kind of targeting is done?

         17                 MR. SCOTLAND: We can bring that back,

         18  yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: You would

         20  support that notion?

         21                 And then finally, and I agree with

         22  you, all the things that are necessary to get those

         23  young people to become employable, basic education,

         24  career training, all that stuff, I agree with whole

         25  heartily.  I think it is very necessary.  But then
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          2  at the end of the day, there needs to be a job, and

          3  what is the guarantee, what is the commitment that

          4  we can have the jobs?  That is the motivational

          5  fact.  You know, I will go through whatever I have

          6  to go through, if I know I am going to get a job.

          7  So, what guarantee, is there some way of connecting

          8  all of the development that is going on now with

          9  other things, to make sure there is a job available

         10  for these young people?

         11                 MR. ALMODOVAR: One of the things that

         12  we are doing and actually, you know, yes, it would

         13  deal with our capital program, is trying to engage

         14  employers in working with young people, trying to

         15  make sure they are not disconnected from the

         16  population also, because that is a future workforce

         17  labor.  So, us reaching out, DYCD reaching out to

         18  employers, trying to being them in, trying to

         19  coordinate with our contractors, our providers to

         20  make sure they are in tune with it, bring in small

         21  business services into the agency and make sure they

         22  get that information out to our providers so we know

         23  where the jobs are, and trying to link them up with

         24  community.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I appreciate
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          2  that effort.  So, we do not have the policy, or we

          3  have not recommended any policy that would almost

          4  guarantee that if there is so much development, the

          5  low income community have to get, you know,

          6  something more directly, more infinitive than the

          7  good will and your hard work, which I understand and

          8  appreciate.  I am just saying to go back to say

          9  there needs to be a policy that guarantees a certain

         10  amount of the employment that becomes available to

         11  the areas of greatest need.  That is all I am

         12  suggesting.

         13                 MR. ALMODOVAR: We will take that back

         14  with us.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Thank you.

         16                 MR. ALMODOVAR: Thank you.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: We have

         18  been joined by Council Member McMahon.  No

         19  questions?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: No.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Okay. And I

         22  have one last question.

         23                 You mentioned the agency had a, the

         24  State put out an RFP?  Do you know how much is that

         25  for?
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          2                 MS. KEENAN: We asked for $9 hundred

          3  thousand dollars.  New York City gets approximately

          4  60 percent of the State's funding for WIA, so we

          5  asked for a proportionate amount and we have not yet

          6  heard what our award will be, but we are hoping and

          7  we are keeping our fingers crossed.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: And you

          9  have not heard what it would be or when you will get

         10  it?

         11                 MS. KEENAN: We have not heard, yet.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Will this

         13  allow you to expand in terms of reaching more youth,

         14  more than the 1300 that were reached in the last

         15  Fiscal Year?

         16                 MS. KEENAN: Yes, the money is ear

         17  marked for older out of school youth and we focused

         18  on a few sub populations, runaway and homeless

         19  youth, disconnected, I am sorry, foster care youth,

         20  disabled youth and so, we are really trying to focus

         21  on those smaller groups that face even more

         22  challenges through that money.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: When you

         24  say older, meaning --

         25                 MS. KEENAN: We are talking about 19
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          2  to 21 year olds.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Okay.

          4                 Is that a new pool of money?

          5                 MS. KEENAN: It would be additional

          6  money.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Because you

          8  have a new fund increase or because you have never

          9  gotten it before?

         10                 MS. KEENAN: It is WIA money that is

         11  coming through the State's Office of Children and

         12  Family Services.  So, it is not connected to the

         13  grant that we get every year.  It is additional

         14  money, it is still WIA money, but it is given to us

         15  in a different way.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Okay.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: I want to get

         19  out of here so I will stop with these questions.

         20                 You know, there is a major gang

         21  problem in New York City, and I am sure that a lot

         22  of the gang activity is even younger than, but a lot

         23  of them also within this age bracket.  Is there

         24  something specifically targeted to deal with that

         25  problem?  Or can there be some initiative that is
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          2  dedicated to trying to engage and diffuse, and some

          3  how bring in to play these people that are truly

          4  disaffected?  Is there something specifically geared

          5  to the gang activity in New York City?

          6                 MR. ALMODOVAR: I will try to approach

          7  on a level, again, it goes back to what we offer the

          8  community at large, and obviously, since we are a

          9  large contracting agency, what we try to do, is

         10  provide capacity building and technical assistance

         11  to our providers, so that they will have the

         12  information, and be able to work with the population

         13  at large.  Since through combination of all of our

         14  contracts, we bring them in for training, to make

         15  sure they can get the word out and work with the

         16  population.

         17                 MR. SCOTLAND: Some of our DYCD's

         18  contracts do specifically reach out to, and engage

         19  that population.  They have gang outreach units.

         20  But to say it is a particular office within the

         21  agency, and that is not the case, but is a part of

         22  the youth development philosophy.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Okay.  There may

         24  not be an office, but I guess I am recommending that

         25  we take a look at that, and see whether or not there
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          2  cannot be a City- wide initiative, again focusing as

          3  tremendous destructive potential, and that is where

          4  we begin to engage it now.  It is beyond most

          5  people's knowledge and expectation.  It really is.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 MR. SCOTLAND: Thank you for that

          8  suggestion, Sir.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Mr. Keenan,

         10  I mean Mr. Almodovar, Ms. Keenan and Mr. Scotland,

         11  thank you so much for your time.

         12                 MR. ALMODOVAR: Thank you for having

         13  us.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PALMA: Our next

         15  panel is Mark Levitan and David Fischer.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: As the Chair, I

         17  want to thank my colleague Council Member Palma, for

         18  chairing the meeting until I arrived.  As you know,

         19  this is the budgetary time.  It is not easy, but you

         20  know you have to do the best you can.  But due to

         21  the nice teamwork that we have here in the staff,

         22  Dottie and Fred and my colleague, Ms. Palmer,

         23  Council Member Palmer, and I just saw Council Member

         24  Vann and he said he would be back.

         25                 What I would like to do is, I
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          2  understand there is some testimony that is just to

          3  begin.  All right, so we will continue with that

          4  testimony.  I think it is Mark Levitan and David

          5  Fischer.

          6                 MR. LEVITAN: This is not part of my

          7  testimony, this is just ridiculous.  We are going to

          8  give this a second, why waste your time?

          9                 Okay, fortunately, I do not trust

         10  technology all that much and there is a copy of the

         11  Power Point presentation in front of you.  So, I

         12  will walk you through the relevant parts of it and I

         13  will try to say as much of it as I can, so that

         14  people who cannot see what you are seeing, can

         15  follow what I am talking about.

         16                 Let me introduce myself.  I am Mark

         17  Levitan, a Senior Policy Analyst with the Community

         18  Service Society of New York.  Thanks for the

         19  opportunity to be here.

         20                 Last year, the society issued a

         21  report entitled Out of School, Out of Work, Out of

         22  Luck, New York City's Disconnected Youth.  And what

         23  I would like to do, in the time that you have

         24  afforded me, is to highlight the report's key

         25  findings and policy recommendations.
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          2                 I think the place to really begin a

          3  discussion is with a definition.  When we say a

          4  disconnected youth, what are we talking about?  And

          5  if you look at the first figure in the presentation,

          6  there is a pie chart.  And what I have done in that

          7  chart is take the 1.1 million New Yorkers who are

          8  age 16 through 24 and I have put them into four

          9  categories.

         10                 The first, which equals about 51

         11  percent of the City's young people, are those who

         12  are in school.

         13                 Secondly, we have people who are out

         14  of school, but are employed.  And that equals about

         15  27 percent of the population.

         16                 Then we have folks who are not in

         17  school, not employed, and they are unemployed, five

         18  percent of the population. To be unemployed

         19  remember, is not only to be jobless, but to be

         20  actively seeking work.

         21                 The next group, which equals 16

         22  percent of young people in this City, are those who

         23  are not in school, are jobless, but are not actively

         24  seeking work. That is, these folks are so

         25  discouraged or alienated, that they do not qualify
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          2  as being unemployed.  That group equals about

          3  175,000 people.  If we added the unemployed to that,

          4  we would get this figure of about 200,000. So, it is

          5  about one fifth of the City's young people.

          6                 Thanks, we are making progress.  So,

          7  that is the pie chart that you missed.

          8                 If we look at this number and we

          9  think about it, how has it changed over time?  What

         10  we see is really two wildly different projectors for

         11  males and females.  So, here we are looking at the

         12  youth population from the end of the 1980's until

         13  the, really the depths of this recession, and what

         14  you see over time here, is that there has been a

         15  very sharp decline in the rate of disconnection for

         16  females.  But what we see is some wiggle with the

         17  business cycle, but really not very much changed for

         18  men.  The change going on for women begins in the

         19  middle part of the 1990's. And it is really driven

         20  by two things, and so, I just in the interest of

         21  time, I will skip over, but get you to this.  So,

         22  the big bar, looking at the female side that is

         23  headed south which is equal to about ten percentage

         24  point decline in the female disconnected rate, was

         25  driven mostly by the fact that a higher proportion
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          2  of the City's females were enrolled in school.

          3                 Secondarily, there are also gains in

          4  their labor market participation.  Over the same

          5  period of time basically, there is no change going

          6  on for young men in the City.

          7                 The other way to understand what is

          8  going on in the City, another way to give it some

          9  context, is to look at how the City stacks up

         10  against the nation.  And so here again, we have

         11  looked at males and females separately, but if you

         12  look at the females, and their disconnected rate,

         13  which is black for New York City, the clear bar is

         14  for all youth in the nation, and then this gray bar

         15  is for youth who live in urban areas.  That is the

         16  central City's bar.

         17                 You see that the female's

         18  disconnected rate in the City is a bit higher than

         19  the national groups.  But not wildly higher.  But

         20  then look what is going on for young men.  The

         21  City's disconnected rate is over twice the national

         22  rate and is 1.7 times the rate for urban dwellers

         23  across the nation.  So, we think of this as an urban

         24  problem, but New York City seems to have an intense

         25  problem here, that even compared to urban dwellers
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          2  across the nation, when we look at our men, our

          3  young men, we have a very particular problem.

          4                 So, looking at this trend over time,

          5  looking at this snap shot in a moment of time, I do

          6  not want to define disconnection as a male problem.

          7  But, I think it is obvious that men, or young men,

          8  are beginning, and maybe have been for the last

          9  decade now, are experiencing difficulties in school

         10  and in the world of work, that are really beginning

         11  to disadvantage them. Women, young women are making

         12  progress, and young men are not.

         13                 The question has been raised, who are

         14  these disconnected young people and I want to show

         15  you three pictures that really, I think, capture how

         16  deeply disadvantaged they are.

         17                 So, let us go to their education

         18  attainment.  And as you can see here, roughly half

         19  the disconnected young people do not have a high

         20  school degree, do not have a GED.  About a third of

         21  them do have a high school degree or GED.  A smaller

         22  fraction have education beyond that level.

         23                 But when we are talking about

         24  disconnected young people, we are really talking

         25  about a group with significant educational

                                                            60

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  deficiencies.

          3                 We are also talking about young

          4  people who live in families that are poor, or near

          5  poor.  So, as you can see, about 45 percent live in

          6  families that are 100 percent below the poverty

          7  threshhold, another quarter of families living

          8  between 100 and 200 percent of the poverty

          9  threshhold.  People who we generally call the near

         10  poor.

         11                 The third thing I want to really

         12  dwell on is the issue of work experience.  So, here

         13  we are looking at again, men and women separately

         14  and the gray bar asks, did you do any work at all in

         15  the prior calendar year?  So, two thirds of the men

         16  and three quarters of the women who are disconnected

         17  said last year, I did not work at all, not one week.

         18

         19                 And then the next question was, well

         20  then what about in the last five years?  So half the

         21  males, almost six out of ten females said, no work

         22  in the prior five years.

         23                 What do these folks have to tell an

         24  employer when they go and look for a job?  There is

         25  really not a big mystery here about why these folks
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          2  are not looking for work.  They have very little

          3  that they can, you know, what can they tell people

          4  when they present a resume or they fill out a job

          5  application?

          6                 So, let me end by talking a little

          7  bit about policy. And I really want to encourage the

          8  Council and the City Administration to try to think

          9  a little bit outside the box here.           The

         10  place to begin is sort of the obvious place, which

         11  is to address the enormous high school drop out

         12  rate, and to create pathways back to school.  When

         13  people talk about disconnected youth, the

         14  conversation always begins with education, as it

         15  should, because an ounce of prevention is worth a

         16  pound of cure.  And if you can keep young people in

         17  school, their chances of making it to adulthood, to

         18  that first job, to higher education, are much

         19  improved.

         20                 But, I think one of the points that I

         21  tried to make in my report is that a school based

         22  approach is not adequate.  Then it needs to be

         23  complimented by an employment based approach.  And

         24  toward that end, I really want to offer two

         25  specifics, which I think could begin as
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          2  demonstration programs, but then draw to scale as

          3  they prove themselves worthy of significant public

          4  dollars.

          5                 And the first recommendation I would

          6  make is that we expand the apprenticeship model to

          7  new industries.  A number of European nations have

          8  developed extensive apprenticeships systems as both

          9  the workforce development tool, and as a mechanism

         10  to transition non college bound youth, from school

         11  to work.

         12                 The attraction of apprenticeships to

         13  disconnected youth is that apprenticeships earn a

         14  wage while they are learning a skill.  In the United

         15  States, we have apprenticeships, but they are

         16  largely confined to the unionized segment of the

         17  construction industry.  But I believe that there are

         18  other industries and occupations in the City where

         19  apprenticeships would be a good fit.

         20                 Although the decline in manufacturing

         21  is hollowing out the middle tiers of the City's

         22  labor market, there are still jobs in New York City

         23  that provide decent wages, but do not require four

         24  year college degrees to perform them.

         25                 For example, over 85,000 New Yorkers
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          2  are employed in occupations that are classified as

          3  installation maintenance and repair.  And basically,

          4  these are folks who keep our infrastructure up and

          5  running.  They do everything from the elevators, the

          6  air conditioning system, computer networks, photo

          7  copying machines. Essentially, they install and

          8  service all the stuff we buy from China.

          9                 We can have a service based economy.

         10  But those jobs are going to stay right here.  And

         11  they pay a pretty decent wage, about $16 dollars per

         12  hour.  This is an opportunity where I think an

         13  apprenticeship system may work.  Young people find

         14  their ways into these jobs, they are kind of a

         15  patchwork.  Some of it is through the vocational

         16  education system, some of it through the Community

         17  Colleges.  A lot of it is by word of mouth, your

         18  father, your brother in law, your uncle know someone

         19  who knows someone, and that is how you get the job.

         20                 The young people that we are talking

         21  about, are outside that system, and they need a way

         22  in.  So, what I would recommend is really first,

         23  that the State DOL, which has authority over the

         24  State apprenticeship system, ought to be fostering

         25  the development of apprenticeships outside
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          2  construction.

          3                 And the way to begin, is really just

          4  with an RFP to invite industry partners to put

          5  together a proposal, and to offer them technical

          6  assistance and funding to begin to get these things

          7  off the ground.  But to weigh proposals in part,

          8  based on the outreach that they will do to this

          9  population.  So, I am not just for apprenticeships

         10  per se, for apprenticeships that target this

         11  population.

         12                 The other thing I want to talk about

         13  is what is often called transitional jobs, or what I

         14  am calling a New York City Jobs Corp.  An

         15  apprenticeship is a fairly rigorous demanding

         16  situation.  A lot of young people we are talking

         17  about, frankly could not hack it, if they were

         18  pulled off the street and put in that situation.

         19  They need something that is transitional to

         20  un-subsidized employment in the private sector.

         21                 One approach, which I believe offers

         22  participants work experience and a wage, is what is

         23  often called publicly subsidized employment.  And

         24  this model has a long history in this country going

         25  back to the New Deal.  In the 1970's, the Federal
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          2  Government funded up to 750,000 public service

          3  employment positions through the Comprehensive

          4  Employment and Training Act.

          5                 More recently, New York City has

          6  created transitional job programs for welfare

          7  participants, such as the Parks Opportunity Program.

          8    What these programs offer people is time limited,

          9  wage paying employment, to people who do not yet

         10  have the capacity to secure a job in the

         11  un-subsidized market. Besides providing income and

         12  on the job training, these programs can offer

         13  remedial education, as well as social services.

         14                 An additional benefit to participants

         15  in the community, is that participants can perform

         16  real work that contributes to the well being of the

         17  City and their neighborhood.

         18                 Typically, participants in

         19  transitional job programs, work for City agencies or

         20  non profit institutions.  But I would also consider

         21  opportunities in the poor profit sector.

         22                 Let me say, frankly, this is a

         23  relatively expensive model, depending on the wage

         24  that you offer people and the intensity of the

         25  insularly services, we are talking about fifteen to
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          2  twenty thousand dollars per participant per year.

          3  But it is one of the few approaches that

          4  consistently shows positive outcomes for low income

          5  youth, in rigorous evaluations.

          6                 And I would recommend that the City

          7  initiate a New York City Job Corps Program.  Let us

          8  begin with 5,000 unemployed out of school youth with

          9  one year publicly subsidized positions.

         10                 These two suggestions I am making,

         11  are hardly cure alls.  They are not large enough.

         12  They do not meet the vast numbers of people we need

         13  to serve.  But they do illustrate, I think, that

         14  meaningful steps can be taken to address the needs

         15  of our out of school youth, if policy makers want to

         16  make the commitment, and want to come up with the

         17  dollars.  Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you very

         19  much, Dr. Levitan.

         20                 Let me just say that one of the

         21  guiding forces for this meeting is that report that

         22  you did on disconnected youth. And I want to thank

         23  you.

         24                 MR. LEVITAN: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I recognize the
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          2  very well thought out and analytical and input that

          3  you have had in doing the assessment of that

          4  population of disconnected youth between the ages of

          5  16 and 24, I believe that was.

          6                 As a matter of fact, I am fighting to

          7  get some additional revenues, as we speak.  People

          8  are cutting us off the table, on the table, around

          9  the table.  But on a serious side, we have to.  You

         10  have 170,000.  In the report I read overall it was

         11  like 300,000 disconnected, either 200 or 300,000

         12  disconnected youth in the City of New York.

         13                 Right now, what we have is possibly

         14  the apprenticeships program in one area for a

         15  certain segment population that you referred to, and

         16  on another kind of apprenticeship program.  And it

         17  appears as though, that the investment is not really

         18  looked at.  This is just my thought.  Of the human

         19  potential and the cost of human labor and the cost

         20  of the, to the City, of people not being employed.

         21  Therefore looking upon the City to subsidize them in

         22  any manner shape or form. Because they cannot work

         23  or they do not have a job.

         24                 I had a number of questions to ask

         25  you, but you answered them all in your
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          2  recommendations and to the Committee, which are good

          3  recommendations.  What are we going to do about

          4  that?  I do not know yet.  But this is a good start

          5  in terms of the hearing.  Because you mentioned the

          6  apprenticeship program and you said, and maybe you

          7  can help me before I have to go across the street at

          8  some point today and argue the case and cases back

          9  on the table or wherever it is.  There seems to be

         10  either you are in trouble, or you are in jail.

         11  There seems to be resources for those two

         12  categories.  For the individuals who need help, who

         13  may not want to go to an academic school.  They may

         14  not want to be a doctor or a lawyer.  I mean, I read

         15  your report and I look at the fact and I look at the

         16  t.v. and I look at the fact that all of the jobs

         17  that you just mentioned, or referred to some of the

         18  jobs, seem not to have a glorified ending.  Seem not

         19  to have had a fixed figure in terms of how much

         20  money does a blue collar worker make?  You know,

         21  what do blue collar workers make in terms of getting

         22  a CDL license and driving a truck.  And they are

         23  able to buy homes and they are able to support their

         24  families and they are able to send their children

         25  off to school even though they did not do it, they
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          2  want it for their children.  There seems to be an

          3  attitude that those individuals in that area do not

          4  count.  And they do count.  And we must invest in

          5  the, the human investment must run parallel to the

          6  capital investment.  In order to really make this

          7  City a real wholesome quality of life place to live.

          8    It might be a beautiful place to live.  It may

          9  have affordable housing, but who can afford it if

         10  you cannot work.

         11                 So, I am making these statements only

         12  to say that we do not have the answers, and what I

         13  am interested in doing and my colleagues, we are

         14  interested in finding solutions to include this

         15  population to run parallel to the direction that

         16  this City is going in, economically, as well as

         17  structurally.

         18                 Just this morning, I saw the report

         19  on the Business News that I believe, New York ranks

         20  about one of the tenth most important places to live

         21  in.  But it is number one in terms of the most

         22  expensive.  So, the comparison sometimes that we do

         23  is misleading.

         24                 For instance, to compare New York

         25  City with all the cities around the world sounds
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          2  good.  But to compare New York City with the cities

          3  in the United States, we represent number one, as

          4  the most expensive place to live.  And we have

          5  175,000 youth running around the City of New York

          6  with no means to make a living or vocation.  And we

          7  are very concerned about that, and we have to find a

          8  spot or direction to move in, okay?

          9                 Could you expound on your premise,

         10  your recommendation for the State Department of

         11  Labor monies?  And is there a similar model

         12  administered elsewhere in New York State?

         13                 MR. LEVITAN: No.  I mean this is

         14  really, you know, I said I think that we need to

         15  think out of the box.  And this is an example of an

         16  out of the box recommendation.

         17                 You had folks here from Mayor's

         18  Administration and what they told you was, we work

         19  with the money we get from the Federal Government

         20  through the Workforce Investment Act.  We administer

         21  that money.  We issue the RFP's.  This is all

         22  controlled from Washington and guess what?  There is

         23  less money from Washington this year, and I am not

         24  telling you something you do not know, it is going

         25  to be less next year, and maybe the year after that.
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          2    We have to begin to develop our own resources and

          3  commit our own resources here.

          4                 Apprenticeships are not necessarily

          5  an expensive item if the industry partners see the

          6  value of this.  So, let us begin small.  Let us pick

          7  out a few places where this seems to be a good

          8  model, let us prove its value to the people in the

          9  industry and to the public, and we can build there

         10  and raise the revenue to go in that direction.

         11                 I think, frankly, the transitional

         12  jobs recommendation is a tougher lift, because it is

         13  much more expensive.  Although, not as expensive as

         14  the cost of incarcerating someone.  But I think that

         15  when we talk about people who are really

         16  disadvantaged, that is the model that we have to

         17  look to.

         18                 DYCD and the Mayor, I think, is very

         19  focused on the school system.  And if you looked

         20  where the money went in the DYCD testimony, more of

         21  it was on in school youth, than out of school youth.

         22                 My impression is that young people

         23  who have dropped out of school do not relish the

         24  idea of going back to the classroom.  For them,

         25  school was an awful experience.  It was a
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          2  humiliation.  If there is anything positive that

          3  they want to do, its to have a job.  To have some

          4  money in their pocket.  To feel like they are

          5  somehow part of the adult world.  They can go out on

          6  a date.  They can go to the movies.  They can rent a

          7  video at Blockbuster.  They can do all the things

          8  that people want to do, that you cannot do if you do

          9  not have anything in your pocket.  And offering

         10  people jobs, connecting them to employment, I think

         11  is really the answer to the questions that were

         12  coming from Councilman Vann about, you know, how do

         13  we approach these people?  How do we get them jobs?

         14  How do we connect them to positive things in their

         15  lives.  I do not think that for many of the

         16  disconnected youth, school is the place to begin.

         17  Down the road, school is going to become very

         18  important.  But I think the place to begin is with

         19  something that offers them a wage.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.  Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 Mr. Fischer?

         23                 MR. FISCHER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 I am David Fischer of the Center for

         25  an Urban Future.  We are a Manhattan based non
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          2  partisan public policy think tank, that conducts

          3  research on economic development and social

          4  workforce development, and other issues of

          5  importance to New York City.

          6                 I want to thank the Committee and the

          7  Chairman for shining a spotlight on a topic that has

          8  not gotten much public attention, but is going to be

          9  of crucial economic and social importance to New

         10  York City, in the decades ahead.  How to address the

         11  related problems of the approximately 200,000 young

         12  New Yorkers neither in school nor working, known as

         13  disconnected youth, in the pending depletion of the

         14  City workforce, as baby boomers begin to retire in

         15  large numbers.

         16                 I have little to add in defining the

         17  scope and particulars of the City's disconnected

         18  youth problem beyond the excellent analysis that

         19  Mark offered a few minutes ago, and in his research

         20  over the past few years.  So, I am going to focus

         21  today on the issues of worker depletion and

         22  potential replacement that the Center touched upon

         23  in our May 2006 report, Chance of a Lifetime. I have

         24  several copies of the report for anyone who would

         25  like to see it.
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          2                 As we detailed in the report, this

          3  crisis situation is quickly coming upon us.

          4  Compared to most questions of public policy, issues

          5  pertaining to demographics are both easier to grasp

          6  conceptually and harder to address for the simple

          7  reason that the numbers are fixed.  What I mean by

          8  that is, that everyone in the workforce of the year

          9  2020 is alive today and it is only less certain that

         10  many current workers in their mid 40's or older, in

         11  physically demanding jobs like nursing and

         12  construction or field structured for early

         13  retirement, like civil service and teaching, will be

         14  gone from the workforce by 2020.

         15                 The challenge then, is to identify

         16  and cultivate potential replacements for those

         17  retiring workers.  As with so much else in

         18  contemplating New York's future, progress here

         19  starts in the schools and homes of our City's young.

         20    Fortunately a number of efforts are under way that

         21  should help prepare our City's young for careers in

         22  some of the economic sectors and job titles where we

         23  project the most significant need.

         24                 Unfortunately, some of those efforts,

         25  several of which you have heard about already, are

                                                            75

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  not as coordinated or effective as they could be,

          3  and they should be.

          4                 Assistant Commissioner Almodovar and

          5  his colleagues have already detailed the commendable

          6  efforts of the Department of youth and Community

          7  Development in this direction.  All the programs

          8  that he and they talked about, Out of School Youth,

          9  Summer Youth Employment Program, OST, are effective.

         10    I have a slight criticism of the agency for not

         11  pushing harder to raise the visibility of these

         12  issues and advocate for more funds.

         13                 As Council Member Vann pointed out,

         14  while it is nice to serve 1,000 people when the need

         15  is between 170,000 and 200,000, it is simply not

         16  sufficient, in terms of addressing the problem. Let

         17  me briefly give you an example.  One of the best

         18  predictors of long term success in the labor market

         19  is having held a job and earned money, a salary, as

         20  a teenager.  The Summer Youth Employment Program is

         21  one of the most popular social programs in the City.

         22    It has employed, I guess at this point, it has

         23  probably put more than a million New Yorkers to work

         24  over the past 20- 30 years.  Now given that, and

         25  given the finding that I just mentioned, that
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          2  working as a team greatly enhances your chances of

          3  working consistently and productively as an adult, I

          4  am honestly baffled why the agency has never

          5  undertaken a long term assessment of the program.  A

          6  longitudinal study showing how much young people

          7  benefit by having these subsidized jobs.  It would

          8  be a great way to raise visibility for the issue and

          9  a great way to earn more funds.

         10                 So, in addition to DYCD's programs, I

         11  would like to speak briefly about what the City

         12  Department of Education has done concerning this

         13  problem.  As you know, Mayor Bloomberg and

         14  Chancellor Klein have focused on dramatically

         15  reducing the drop out rate.  One major component of

         16  their strategy for this is Learning to Work, a

         17  program that began in September 2005, emphasizing

         18  internships and work place preparation for overage,

         19  under credited high school students.  The Department

         20  enrolled over 2500 of these students in learning to

         21  work during the 2005, 2006 school year. And they are

         22  receiving a $8.4 million dollar grant from the Gates

         23  Foundation to expand the effort.  They have plans to

         24  open twenty more Learning to Work Centers, co-

         25  located with transfer schools and Young Adult
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          2  Borough Centers.

          3                 I wish the Department of Education

          4  had been able to come today to testify about what

          5  they have learned in the first year of this very

          6  important program, and about whatever plans they

          7  have to tweak the program, maybe targeting some of

          8  the high demand sectors that we talked about in The

          9  Chance of a Lifetime report, some of the fields that

         10  mark just talked about, other areas of clear need.

         11                 Another important asset of the

         12  Department which I do not think they have given

         13  enough attention to are, the City's 18 schools and

         14  nearly 50 programs under Career and Technical

         15  Education or CTE, formerly known as vocational

         16  schools.  Over recent decades, these institutions

         17  have largely been dismissed as educational back

         18  waters and dumping grounds for students of limited

         19  academic and social skills.  But if you go back 100

         20  years, vocational education in New York City has a

         21  proud history training generations of skilled

         22  workers in high value fields from masonry to

         23  aviation maintenance.

         24                 CTE schools provide students the

         25  chance to explore career possibilities, including
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          2  some that might not lead to a four year college

          3  degree, as the Chairman said a moment ago, but are

          4  crucial to any functioning community, and pay a

          5  family supporting wage.  As a result of reforms at

          6  the State level, the City CTE programs now must

          7  coordinate their curricula and program features with

          8  private sector partners.  These private sector

          9  partners frequently donate equipment, time and

         10  advice in mentoring and other capacities.

         11  Additionally, CTE students face academic

         12  requirements of equal rigor, to their non CTE

         13  counterparts.

         14                 These schools can play a vital role

         15  in helping New York City meet the needs of the early

         16  21st century economy.  Fields of instruction within

         17  CTE, now include information technology, new media,

         18  bio medical technology, environmental engineering

         19  and robotics, as well as mature fields that will

         20  still see significant boomer retirements, such as

         21  automotive maintenance, nursing and health care and

         22  construction.  These CTE programs however, remain

         23  under funded, and something of an after thought, in

         24  the City's overall plan for reform, at the secondary

         25  level.
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          2                 Taken as a group, all of these

          3  programs that the staff from DYCD spoke about, and

          4  that I have just talked about, as well as efforts

          5  such as the NYC Works program that City Council has

          6  funded, are really not insignificant.  Even assuming

          7  some overlaps, such as summer youth employment

          8  program participants who also receive Learning to

          9  Work services.  These initiatives all entirely are

         10  largely funded with public dollars, probably serve

         11  approximately 50,000 young New York City residents.

         12  And while only learning to work and the Out of

         13  School Youth program of DYCD are explicitly focused

         14  on disconnected and at risk youth.

         15                 The point remains that we are not

         16  starting from scratch here.  The City has some

         17  infrastructure in place and a fair amount of

         18  expertise to bring to bear on the program of how to

         19  prepare larger numbers of City youth, for jobs and

         20  careers.

         21                 What I think is missing is, any

         22  entity that coordinate and focus these efforts and

         23  serve as a single point of contact for employers,

         24  educational institutions and other stakeholders that

         25  want to get involved.  Over the past few years, the
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          2  philanthropic community in the City, and policy

          3  thinkers, have moved toward consensus on the value

          4  of launching a workforce development intermediary

          5  organization, explicitly designed and staffed to

          6  serve the needs of City youth.  This entity would

          7  convene stakeholders to build on the recommendations

          8  of the young adult task force, a cross section group

          9  that last year released a report on New York City's

         10  disconnected youth titled The Time is Now,

         11  implementing one system for New York City's emerging

         12  workforce.

         13                 As part of that work of implementing

         14  the task force recommendations, the intermediary

         15  would help provider organizations build capacity and

         16  train staff, disseminate best practices, highlight

         17  successes, partner with industry actors to build

         18  career development pathways within specific

         19  industries of need and advocate for more resources

         20  and support from the community, and at all levels of

         21  government.

         22                 The City Workforce Development

         23  Funders Group, a collaboration of more than 25

         24  funders, is considering a major investment in such

         25  an intermediary, along the lines of undertaking
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          2  instead of successful serving youth in Boston,

          3  Philadelphia, San Diego and San Francisco.  Of

          4  course, to sustain this effort and really have it

          5  succeed at the level we would all want, the public

          6  sector and corporations and other stakeholders, will

          7  have to become involved both financially, and

          8  operationally.

          9                 My view, however, is that to assemble

         10  the pieces and drawing the additional resources

         11  really needed to build a truly effective youth to

         12  work system, the City should join this effort. The

         13  stakes could hardly be higher.

         14                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         15  testify and I would be happy to answer any questions

         16  you might have.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you very

         18  much, Mr. Fischer.

         19                 I could not agree with you more on

         20  the effort that or the slogan, the time is now, to

         21  implement one system in New York City for the

         22  disconnected youth.

         23                 You know, we in the City just, some

         24  of us, just do not get it.  We just do not get it in

         25  terms of the, that value that does translate to
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          2  monetary rewards for one to work and contribute to

          3  the tax base.  As you were speaking, about

          4  disconnected youth, what flashed before my eyes was

          5  the commercial I see on t.v. from time to time.  And

          6  I never thought about it until you mentioned it,

          7  about disconnected youth, and about industry, and

          8  about blue collar workers.  I do not know what

          9  particular telephone company it is for the cell

         10  phones, but the guy walks out of the store with a

         11  cell phone.  An average guy, no shirt and tie, he

         12  just walks out as a blue collar worker and when he

         13  walks out, there is another guy on the opposite end,

         14  that is the head of the line of a whole bunch of

         15  people.  And as he moves, they move.  And they say

         16  you have just become part of an entire network, an

         17  entire company.  And that is how I envision what

         18  blue collars are, in terms of being very integral

         19  part.  I mean, just imagine if we were to take the

         20  economic revenue that is generated by these same

         21  individuals from 16- 24, who is using cell phones?

         22  Who has to pay for cell phones? They are

         23  contributing.  We do not know where they are getting

         24  the money from, but the fact is, they are generating

         25  income for business.  So, when you speak in terms of
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          2  how private enterprise should be involved, I agree

          3  with you.  And I will make every effort and share

          4  with colleagues on the Committee and with the

          5  Speaker, to see whether or not we can encourage some

          6  of those in private industry to join us.  Then we

          7  will be able to get us out of that box, because

          8  everybody wants to think that it is everybody else's

          9  responsibility.  But we all inherently have that

         10  responsibility.

         11                 And do you have any other

         12  suggestions, in terms of developing job growth or

         13  expanding opportunities for the various skills that

         14  you mentioned in your presentation?

         15                 MR. FISCHER: I do think that the

         16  bully pulpit is very important in this whole, in

         17  focusing attention and raising visibility on this

         18  whole set of problems.  The Workforce Investment

         19  Board, which is the private sector advisory body

         20  that is required under the Workforce Investment Act,

         21  has gotten much better over the past five years, but

         22  it still is not really at the point where I think

         23  this system, the public workforce system, is in the

         24  minds of the City's business leaders.  And while

         25  Mayor Bloomberg has been an almost unimaginable
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          2  improvement in this respect, compared to his

          3  predecessor, he also has not, I think, emphasized

          4  this certainly to the degree that I, as someone who

          5  pretty much spends all my time thinking about these

          6  issues, would like to see.

          7                 It is really something that, you

          8  know, the case has to be made, the issue has to be

          9  front and center in people's minds, and you also

         10  have to kind of explain what will happen if we do

         11  not do this.

         12                 Mr. Chairman, you seem very focused

         13  on the dangers of not integrating this very large

         14  cohort of young people into the mainstream economy,

         15  into the mainstream of our society.  I do not think

         16  that other people, that most other people, you know,

         17  as you said, many people just do not get it.  And

         18  when you super impose this problem on what is going

         19  to happen when so many of the people who keep our

         20  City working, the nurses, the mechanics, the

         21  carpenters and welders, the school teachers, the

         22  civil servants, start moving into retirement in

         23  large numbers, as they will do in less than a

         24  decade.  You know, we try not to throw the word

         25  crisis around too readily, because you de- value the
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          2  word, but it is not at all hard to imagine the

          3  situation devolving into a crisis.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you.

          5                 And I speak to youth.  I am quite

          6  sure, and where we come from we have a, whether you

          7  go to a store, you go, especially during the summer

          8  to get some ice cream, you will notice somewhere in

          9  some communities somewhere, kids standing around

         10  with nothing to do.  And to a large degree the

         11  Summer Youth Employment program does work.

         12                 But when you start getting into the

         13  ages of 18, 19, 20, 21, you know, even though we are

         14  talking about youth, we are talking about men.  And

         15  they tend to stand around, and based on the economic

         16  needs of an individual at that given point, we enter

         17  a dangerous zone on what we are going to feed.

         18  Either we are going to feed the prison system or the

         19  homeless population.  And all have a cost.  To me,

         20  you know, they both, and this is the part that

         21  disturbs me, and I am willing to think outside the

         22  box, and I would hope that my colleagues would do

         23  so, at that given point in time, they are going to

         24  become part of the economy.  They are going to feed

         25  the institutions, the penal institution.  The penal
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          2  institutions build towns.  They have an economic

          3  value.  Wherever you have a prison, you have to have

          4  housing, you have to have stores, you have to have

          5  schools, you have to have cars, you have to have the

          6  kind of job that you mentioned, somebody to fix the

          7  cars and ABCD, all right?  As well as, not to equate

          8  the value in terms of mass housing, does generate

          9  economics.  A college will build a town, okay?  With

         10  the same dimensions, only the inhabitants of the

         11  college is there to get a career and move forward.

         12  The individuals who are in the penal institution,

         13  are there because they committed a crime.

         14                 But thinking outside the box, what

         15  would we rather have?  Because it befuddles my mind

         16  sometimes, when people come to my office and they

         17  want to work between this age.  And they are not

         18  educated.  When they were working in a penal

         19  institution making furniture.  Yet, when they come

         20  out, they cannot get a job working in the furniture

         21  factory.  Or they learn some of the trades that we

         22  speak of in both of yours testimony.  Yet, they

         23  cannot get a job.

         24                 So, what message are we sending?  I

         25  mean, I would think that we need to work on, if I
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          2  can add an idea, we need to add to the private

          3  sector, the worth of an individual who might have

          4  been incarcerated and went through some vocational

          5  skills training in masonry and carpentry, et cetera.

          6                 To employ some of these individuals

          7  who are within that age range, but yet and still, we

          8  have a penalty on some individuals and companies

          9  that engage in contracts with the City that they

         10  cannot hire anyone who has ever been arrested.  So

         11  therefore, they are locked out of that.

         12                 So, we have to think outside of the

         13  box and maybe me and my colleagues can think outside

         14  the box, to not be irresponsible, but to add an

         15  opportunity there through legislation, that would

         16  allow an individual to have an opportunity to have

         17  to have a job.  Because I truly believe, whether you

         18  went to Yale or from jail, that everybody, every kid

         19  deserves to learn to earn.  It adds a certain fabric

         20  and a fiber to your being, in terms of value. Such

         21  as, if a guy had a dollar that he stole and his

         22  buddy asked him for a dollar, he would say here.  If

         23  you went and worked for that dollar, and that same

         24  buddy asked you, you would say, why do you not get a

         25  job?  I just got off from work.
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          2                 So, learning to earn is very

          3  important, even if you got money.  I do not think

          4  that youngsters or individuals who come from

          5  families who have money, should not be given the

          6  opportunity to learn to earn.  Because it is very

          7  important.

          8                 So, I just want to thank you and you

          9  know, I am taking a lot of time here because I am

         10  very passionate about opportunities and creating

         11  opportunities for people to get employment, because

         12  it is very, very important.

         13                 So, I want to thank you, as well as

         14  you, Mr. Fischer and Levitan for coming before us

         15  today.  Thank you very much.

         16                 I would like to call Morry Hermon and

         17  Nicole Bertran.

         18                 I would like to just, I know

         19  sometimes when you sit down you say well, when I am

         20  going to be called.  So I am going to let you know

         21  that Jeremy Reiss, Michael J. Caslin -- okay, he

         22  left testimony?  Thank you very much.  And Rachel

         23  Gross and Michael Caslin will be up next, okay?

         24  Just bear with us.

         25                 MR. HERMON: Thank you.  On all
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          2  members of the City Council Committee on Economic

          3  Development, thank you for allowing me to provide

          4  this testimony today.

          5                 My name is Morry Hermon and I am the

          6  Director of Programs and Research at Vocational

          7  Foundation, Inc.  VFI was founded in 1936 to give

          8  economically and educationally disadvantaged New

          9  York young adults, the tools to achieve financial

         10  independence.  We provide six months of intensive

         11  occupational classroom training, literacy and GED

         12  prep, counseling, internship, job placement and long

         13  term retention services in the growth sectors of

         14  hospitality, travel and tourism, medical office

         15  assistant, computer technology, security guard and

         16  office tech, office clerical jobs.

         17                 Over the past 70 years, VFI has

         18  helped more than 170,000 out of school and

         19  unemployed youth from the poorest neighborhoods in

         20  the City to make the transition to the world of

         21  work.

         22                 And today, I would like to share with

         23  you what we have learned from our experience, and

         24  what we believe would increase placement and

         25  retention outcomes.
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          2                 Last year, VFI served over 500 low

          3  income young men and women ages 17- 21 from all five

          4  boroughs of New York.  About 70 percent were African

          5  American, and 30 percent Latino.  Over 80 percent

          6  were from Brooklyn, mostly Bushwick, Redhook, East

          7  New York and Bedford Stuyvesant.  And 63 percent

          8  were female.

          9                 Thanks to our new partnership with

         10  New York City Housing Authority and our new security

         11  guard track, the proportion of males has increased

         12  almost half during the spring '06 cycle and with

         13  that recent move back to Manhattan, the proportion

         14  of students from Lower East Side, Harlem, Queens and

         15  the Bronx, is growing, as well.

         16                 VFI's target population is becoming

         17  an increasingly challenging one to serve.  The

         18  percentage of young parents and public assistance

         19  recipients has more than doubled in the past year.

         20  We are also noticing a rise in the personal barriers

         21  to program completion job placement retention, such

         22  as an increase in recreational drug use,

         23  particularly among the female population, which was

         24  not the case about five years ago, particularly

         25  marijuana use, gang affiliation among the young men,
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          2  which is growing in our center, histories with the

          3  Criminal Justice System, abusive relationships with

          4  the female, usually and her boyfriend or unhealthy

          5  relationships at home, unstable housing situations,

          6  health problems and lack of health insurance and low

          7  self esteem, which is growing among the males, which

          8  usually we used to see more among the females.

          9                 And VFI believes that workforce

         10  development organizations need to therefore take a

         11  holistic multi service approach to not just provide

         12  technical skills training, but also look at the

         13  young person as whole and so we have recently

         14  secured funding to get a grant for an on site

         15  psychological therapist to work with young people

         16  that have issues that their training staff cannot

         17  address, because they do not have the skills to do

         18  so.  And the log term, we hope to also provide on

         19  site child care, for the single mothers and the

         20  single fathers.

         21                 Despite these obstacles, about 70

         22  percent of our participants complete the training

         23  program, and about eight percent of the graduates

         24  are placed in jobs, and over 60 percent of those

         25  placed, are still employed after one year, thanks to

                                                            92

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  VFI's nationally recognized Moving Up Program, which

          3  provides graduates with two years of follow up

          4  services, to make sure they can keep their job and

          5  advance in their career.

          6                 What we have found, however, is that

          7  the education level of the participants is directly

          8  correlated with these outcomes.  It should come as

          9  no surprise that those who enter the program with a

         10  high school diploma or GED or attain their GED

         11  through our Literacy Program, have a higher job

         12  placement rate, have a higher wage at placement and

         13  higher job retention outcomes, than those who do

         14  not.

         15                 More and more young people are coming

         16  to us without their high school diploma or GED, and

         17  this last cycle is 85 percent who have entered

         18  without their high school -- and that is why they

         19  come because, as I said earlier, the young people

         20  want to get a job and earn some money.  But

         21  obviously, in order to get a good job, they need to

         22  have their GED and so they can do that, both of

         23  those things with us.

         24                 Seventy five percent have math skills

         25  below the 9th grade level, and the majority read
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          2  below the 9th grade level.  So, for this, what we

          3  call pre GED population, although they tend to

          4  advance about two grade levels in their reading

          5  scores during the six month training period, is

          6  extremely challenging to pass their GED exam in that

          7  amount of time, especially the math section.  As you

          8  know, math is extremely important to employers.

          9                 So, right now we have a pending

         10  request with the City Council for FY07 to support an

         11  enhanced Literacy Program. With your partnership,

         12  VFI participants will receive 315 hours of literacy

         13  instruction in English, Language Arts, Mathematics,

         14  Social Studies, Life Sciences and GED test prep.

         15  And as part of our long term investment in its

         16  clients, VFI would like to provide additional

         17  literacy, numeracy (sic.) And GED services for those

         18  who do not pass the test within their initial

         19  training period.  And to accommodate clients who are

         20  placed in full time jobs, we would offer these

         21  classes during the evenings and weekends.

         22                 We are also seeking public and

         23  private funding to include a continuing education

         24  series that would provide alumni with advanced

         25  training modules and a college prep component to
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          2  enroll those who have passed their GED exam into

          3  higher education. And this would also take place in

          4  evenings and weekends.  Those would be things like

          5  Sisco Network certificate or Phlebotomy certificate,

          6  and things of that nature, so that they can continue

          7  to advance once they have gotten their initial job,

          8  and increase their long term employment outcome.

          9                 So, we invite you to join us as we

         10  expand our numbers of disconnected youth served and

         11  increase their long term employment outcomes.

         12                 Thank you for your consideration and

         13  for allocating additional funding for job training

         14  for out of school youth.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you.

         16                 Council Member James?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Let me just

         18  thank you for all of your work.  I miss you in the

         19  district.  I know you are now in Manhattan, but we

         20  still maintain close contact.  Look forward to

         21  supporting youth.  Looking forward to all that you

         22  do with kindred spirits.  Obviously literacy, GED

         23  training, workforce development and a holistic

         24  approach to addressing this issue, should be our

         25  approach.
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          2                 So, again, I thank you and Mr.

          3  Chairman I look forward to supporting them in this

          4  year's budget.  And I hope that you would do the

          5  same, right?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Right.

          8                 MR. HERMON: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: You had mentioned

         10  the percentage of young parents and public assistant

         11  recipients have more than doubled in the past year.

         12  Do you know why that is?

         13                 MR. HERMON: Well, typically this last

         14  year the young women that have come to us, I would

         15  say around age 19, dropped out of high school when

         16  they had their child and they had their first baby

         17  when they were about 16, 17.  And now that their

         18  child is about two years old and her mom is taking

         19  care of her, she suddenly realizes that she really

         20  needs to do something to make some money that she

         21  move out of her mother's apartment and take care of

         22  her child.  And so she comes to VFI, things that she

         23  hears about VFI, we have this partnership with

         24  NYCHA, and so a lot of the housing development and

         25  residence have gotten a letter.  And this is like,
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          2  for her, a second chance, and so she has come into

          3  the program. And a lot of the young males are also

          4  non custodial parents, fathers, and they are also

          5  having the same feeling, I have got to do something

          6  now before it is too late.

          7                 And so, it is just a function of them

          8  wanting to both get their training, get a job and

          9  also get their GED.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay, thank you.

         11                 Ms. Bertran?

         12                 MS. BERTRAN: Yes.

         13                 Good afternoon.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Good afternoon.

         15                 MS. BERTRAN: I am pleased to have the

         16  opportunity to address the members of the Committee

         17  today.

         18                 My name is Nicole Bertran and I am

         19  the Director of Training at NEW, Non- traditional

         20  Employment for Women.  We are a non profit job

         21  training program whose mission is to provide career

         22  opportunities in the skilled trades.

         23                 Thank you, for real.

         24                 And thank you for the support we have

         25  received in the ads and the precious funding.
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          2                 We are testifying today, of course,

          3  in response to the report issued by the Center for

          4  an Urban Future.  The Center predicts that some

          5  20,000 new jobs will open up over the next five

          6  years in construction, amid a city- wide building

          7  boom and a large number of retirees from the trades.

          8    We believe NEW and other existing pre-

          9  apprenticeship programs can play an important role

         10  in helping to direct disconnected youth toward these

         11  tremendous opportunities in construction.

         12                 The opportunity to obtain a middle

         13  class family supporting lifestyle without a college

         14  education, is real in the construction industry.

         15  Since 1978, NEW has been at the forefront in

         16  advocating for and creating career opportunities for

         17  women in high waged skilled trade's careers.

         18                 NEW provides quality hands on

         19  training in carpentry, electrical and painting,

         20  through our union trained instructional staff.

         21  However, what makes us unique, is the fact that

         22  because we only train women, we are able to provide

         23  gender specific job readiness training, as well.

         24                 NEW's, when we were talking, you had

         25  mentioned holistic methodology, New's integrated
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          2  training model provides a woman with everything she

          3  needs to know about how to be successful in

          4  construction, from reading a ruler to reading a

          5  blueprint, from safety and ergonomics to sexual

          6  harassment prevention strategies.

          7                 NEW employs a cradle to grave

          8  philosophy.  In other words, NEW's training takes a

          9  woman from seeing an ad at a bus stop, to realizing

         10  a career in construction to ongoing support services

         11  to ensure retention in that career.  Time and again,

         12  NEW's employer clients regard our graduates as the

         13  best apprentices we have got.                Graduates

         14  of our training program are better prepared to be

         15  carpenters, painters, laborers and electricians than

         16  anyone coming off the street, hands down.

         17                 The opportunity for a young person to

         18  grow in construction is real, as well.  When a

         19  person joins a union at the age of 18, generally,

         20  they are able to retire comfortably at the age of 55

         21  with full medical and pension benefits.  In addition

         22  to that, they have lived the majority of their lives

         23  as productive members of society giving an honest

         24  day's work for an honest day's pay.  As a function

         25  of being a union member, they have adopted a
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          2  political identity, they have mastered a skill, and

          3  they have become economically self sufficient at a

          4  young age.

          5                 I would like to share a story with

          6  you about a recent graduate of NEWS daytime training

          7  program, one of my favorites.  When she came to NEW,

          8  21 year old Shante had been living on her own for

          9  nearly five years, since the age of 16.  At the

         10  time, she was renting a room in a brownstone in

         11  Brooklyn where there was, as she described it, a lot

         12  of undesirable activity going on.  Her part time

         13  position as a food vendor at Madison Square Garden,

         14  paid enough to rent the room and buy some food each

         15  week, but that was it, no growth, no opportunity.

         16  Shante had been trying to save money for moving

         17  expenses, but without a real job, established

         18  credit, or a reliable roommate, she was stuck.

         19                 Then she saw a NEWS ad at a bus stop,

         20  part of our large scale city funded recruitment

         21  campaign.  She called right away, passed all of our

         22  application and testing requirements and enrolled in

         23  NEWS training program in November 2005, with a goal

         24  of becoming a laborer in the Mason Tenders Local 79.

         25                 Each day, Shante would ask me how she
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          2  was doing in training.  And each day I would say,

          3  great.  And each Friday, this is for real, Shante

          4  would come to me and ask if I thought it was

          5  possible for her to become a laborer.  And each

          6  Friday I would tell her to keep doing what she was

          7  doing, and we would make it happen.

          8                 During the training, Shante was never

          9  late, absent only for work related reasons, improved

         10  her math skills and was highly recommended by new

         11  staff and instructors, to the Mason Tenders Local

         12  79.

         13                 Shante completed NEW's training

         14  program in early January 2006, and was referred the

         15  same month.  Through the direct access provision

         16  developed by the Mayor's Commission on Construction

         17  Opportunity, which shortens the waiting period to

         18  enter an apprenticeship, Shante was accepted to the

         19  Mason Tenders Local 79 on January 23rd, 2006.  And

         20  that kind of turn around time is something we have

         21  never seen before, the Mayor's Commission. According

         22  to the apprentice director, she is doing very well

         23  and has been working steadily.  According to Shante,

         24  she loves it and has never been happier.  She has

         25  gone from being a disconnected youth to a proud
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          2  union member and a trades woman with a solid future.

          3                 Pre- apprenticeship has proved to be

          4  the most significant tool to prepare young people

          5  for the construction industry.  Along with NEW, the

          6  Mayor's Commission on Construction Opportunity and

          7  Building Trades, have endorsed a program called

          8  Construction Skills 2000, or CS2K.  I am actually

          9  surprised not to see them here this afternoon.  CS2K

         10  has been extremely successful in preparing

         11  disconnected, disadvantaged youth for careers in

         12  construction.  As the Center's report suggests, we

         13  cannot rely on the Public School system at this

         14  point, to adequately prepare our young people for

         15  the world of work.  Rather, we should look to

         16  customized training programs whose expertise is to

         17  prepare young people for career opportunities in

         18  construction and other growth industries.

         19                 We ask the City Council to continue

         20  to support NEW and other valuable programs, as well

         21  as public policy initiatives that provide New York

         22  City youth with access to rewarding careers in the

         23  construction industry.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you.

                                                            102

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 Do you have any questions?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, obviously I

          4  am familiar with your ads.

          5                 MS. BERTRAN: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: I see that they

          7  are in my district.  And they are primarily around

          8  public housing, which is fabulous.  I know some of

          9  the graduates.

         10                 The question that I have is, within

         11  each of the unions, do they set aside a certain

         12  number of slots for your graduates?

         13                 MS. BERTRAN: That is a good question.

         14    Per the one of the major provisions that came out

         15  of the Mayor's Commission on Construction

         16  Opportunity, ten percent of apprenticeship seats are

         17  allocated to graduates of NEWS per apprenticeship

         18  training program.

         19                 So, the provision, the whole

         20  provision, is 40 percent goes to under represented

         21  populations.  So, NEW has ten percent allocated

         22  Construction Skills 2000, a program called Helmets

         23  to Hard Hats and another program called STRIVE.

         24  STRIVE developed the pre apprenticeships.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And do you have
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          2  child care slots?  I mean, do you have vouchers?

          3  How do you deal with the issue of child care?

          4                 MS. BERTRAN: The issue of child care

          5  is one that we, as an organization, have not really

          6  been able to take on.  We work with, you know we

          7  partner with other agencies where their main focus

          8  is child care, Child Care, Inc. Is the main one.

          9  And it is a tremendous struggle and our women, our

         10  graduates have to adapt to sort of beg, borrow and

         11  steal philosophy you know, to calling in all sorts

         12  of favors.  Not only to make it through our training

         13  but to make it in the industry.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And are you

         15  applying for the Workforce Development Funds, or

         16  have you applied?

         17                 MS. BERTRAN: Which funds?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: The Workforce

         19  Development.

         20                 MS. BERTRAN: The New York City Works?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Yes.

         22                 MS. BERTRAN: Yes.  We are going to

         23  apply and plan to apply.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Okay.

         25                 Thank you.

                                                            104

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 MS. BERTRAN: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I see here that

          4  NEW provides quality hands on training, according to

          5  your testimony?

          6                 MS. BERTRAN: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: For carpentry,

          8  electrical and painting with union instructors?

          9                 MS. BERTRAN: Correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: How successful are

         11  you upon completion of that training?

         12                 MS. BERTRAN: The, well I can tell you

         13   --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: In those areas?

         15                 MS. BERTRAN: In those areas

         16  specifically?  Well, the carpenter's union is one of

         17  our major employer clients, as is the painters, the

         18  laborers, the electricians, the plumbers and Con

         19  Edison is one, as well.  The carpenters happen to be

         20  the largest union, construction union, in New York

         21  City and so they take, they absorb the majority of

         22  our folks.

         23                 This year, our placement rate is 85

         24  percent of our graduates.  So, we are doing very

         25  well.  This has actually been a historic year for
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          2  our organization, the Mayor's Provision and we have

          3  trained more women, graduated more women and placed

          4  more women than in our 28 year history.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Well, I want to

          6  congratulate you on your historic year and hopefully

          7  next year will be a historic year over this year.

          8                 MS. BERTRAN: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: And I want to

         10  thank you for your time and your testimony.

         11                 MS. BERTRAN: Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay.

         13                 Rachel Gross?  Michael Caslin?

         14  Jeremy Reiss?

         15                 MR. REISS: Looks like it just might

         16  be me.  Are the others here?

         17                 Good afternoon.  I want to thank you

         18  both and the Committee for holding this really

         19  important hearing today.

         20                 My name is Jeremy Reiss.  I am the

         21  Director of Legislation and Public Policy at the New

         22  York City Employment and Training Coalition.  We are

         23  an association and close to 200 CBO's, including the

         24  Vocational Foundation and NEW, community colleges,

         25  unions and educational entities that provide
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          2  education training and employment services to over

          3  half a million New Yorkers. Approximately 60 percent

          4  of our members provide workforce development and

          5  other educational services for both in school and

          6  out of school youth.

          7                 As people here have said today, New

          8  York City is experiencing a transformation in the

          9  workforce.  Baby boomers are reaching retirement,

         10  and the City has also initiated economic development

         11  projects across the five boroughs.

         12                 Over the next several years,

         13  thousands of jobs will become available in

         14  construction, health care, manufacturing, auto

         15  maintenance and a number of other industries that

         16  provide living wages and offer benefits and access

         17  to career mobility.  In Appendix A, there is a more

         18  detailed summary of the anticipated change in the

         19  labor force.

         20                 Unfortunately, New York City's youth

         21  are not prepared to take these jobs because they A.

         22  Lack the educational credentials and B. Lack the

         23  work skills.  As others here have testified today,

         24  about 200,000 are not in school and are not working.

         25    Without educational credentials and/or career
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          2  training, the vast majority of these individuals

          3  will face a lifetime of low wage work.  Appendix B

          4  provides more detailed information. Demographics

          5  about the crisis in disconnected youth.

          6                 This testimony presents

          7  recommendations for how we can ensure that the

          8  City's economic prosperity is shared with our

          9  younger generation.  There will always be talented

         10  people from across the country and abroad, who want

         11  to live and work in New York City and fill these

         12  anticipated workforce needs.  But we need to find a

         13  way to ensure that the young people who are here

         14  today, are adequately prepared to compete for the

         15  jobs of the next decade.           Overall, we as a

         16  City, need to make sure that as many youth as

         17  possible, stay in school.  As the data shows,

         18  individuals who graduate from high school earn more,

         19  significantly more.  In addition, government costs

         20  decreases.  We spend less on public assistance,

         21  health care subsidies, criminal justice system and

         22  homeless services.

         23                 But right now, only 19 percent of

         24  students who are over age and under credited go on

         25  to graduate high school.  And only 17 percent of
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          2  youth who begin DOE sponsored GED programs, go on to

          3  finish them.

          4                 We also must ensure, as others here

          5  today have said, that as many youth as possible,

          6  have access to early employment opportunities.  The

          7  earlier that one gains job experience, the more

          8  likely they will stay on a life long path of

          9  working, learning job skills, retaining a job and

         10  earning income.  Internships and mentorships are key

         11  to the labor market engagement model, as is direct

         12  job experience, as exemplified by the Summer Youth

         13  Employment model.  Transitional employment is also a

         14  very promising way to link populations with multiple

         15  barriers to employment, such as youth to labor

         16  market opportunities.

         17                 The ideas offered below provide a

         18  road map for effective service delivery for those

         19  individuals that do not stay in school, or who face

         20  a risk of dropping out because a number of sectors

         21  that create good living wage jobs, yet require

         22  limited formal education, will be experiencing

         23  significant openings.  The time for action is now.

         24  I would say the first overall recommendation that I

         25  have is, we need to increase the capacity of the
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          2  organizations that serve at risk youth and youth

          3  disconnected from school.

          4                 The New York City Young Adult Task

          5  Force, which was historic collaboration between

          6  government, the private sector, the non profit

          7  sector.  And philanthropy produced a report recently

          8  that calls for increasing the number of young adults

          9  served by 200 percent by 2007, which would allow us

         10  to enroll 25,000 more kids. I think that is a big

         11  ambitious initiative, but I think, you know, it is a

         12  road map and a goal.

         13                 And to do so most effectively,

         14  though, we really need to connect schools, community

         15  based organizations, and the intermediaries that

         16  support their development, to both public and

         17  private employers.  This is very important.  We also

         18  need to make more detailed data available about

         19  disconnected youth and the emerging employment

         20  opportunities by sector, and use it to guide and

         21  shake policy responses.  We need to understand the

         22  skills our youth piazze and how air policy

         23  interventions achieve their desired results of

         24  linkage to educational credentials, work and career

         25  advancement. I think David Fischer's recommendation
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          2  for evaluating the Summer Youth Employment Program

          3  is excellent and can really help us gain additional

          4  resources.

          5                 If we understood the jobs expected

          6  and skills required from the City's economic

          7  development initiatives which I know Council Member

          8  James is very interested in, because of the growth

          9  in her district.  And we would really have an

         10  opportunity to link the disconnected youth to

         11  employment opportunities.  I would encourage you to

         12  continue working with the Administration in trying

         13  to figure out how the Borough's economic, the

         14  economic development initiatives happening across

         15  the City, really help people that are in the

         16  communities.

         17                 I think in terms of understanding the

         18  data that are available, the City has taken a step

         19  in the right direction. Months ago, the contracted

         20  with the Heldrick Center for Workforce Development

         21  at Rutgers to recommend a design for the New York

         22  City Workforce information system, and we have been

         23  involved in that project.

         24                 I would say my second big

         25  recommendation is ensuring that we have multiple
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          2  pathways to educational credentials and careers.

          3  Different people are going to have different needs.

          4  I think the core services are on academic

          5  development, career development, youth development

          6  in case management, but there is not a one size fits

          7  all model here.  I think one big thing we need to do

          8  is really ensure that we have an enhanced

          9  coordination in system wide reporting.  I think it

         10  is excellent, you know, what NYC Works has done.  I

         11  think, getting to a question you asked earlier, it

         12  has really helped a lot of our member organizations

         13  supplement the services that are already offered.

         14  Because as you have heard before the WIA, the

         15  Federal dollars are not highly flexible.  One of the

         16  things our members are saying to me is, you know, we

         17  have these programs and we cannot help someone get

         18  from a fifth grade reading level to a ninth grade

         19  reading level, because the WIA funds will not

         20  reimburse us for these services.  But these services

         21  are really important, nonetheless.

         22                 So, I would urge the City to think

         23  creatively about how it could really leverage

         24  additional financing.  WIA funds were never intended

         25  to be a stand alone funding stream, at all.  They
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          2  were intended to be used in coordination with other

          3  funding.

          4                 Third major recommendation I have

          5  would be to create career pathways for disconnected

          6  youth.  I think unless we look to do that, we are

          7  going to consider to see people in jobs that are

          8  very low wage.  And I would say enhance case

          9  management, follow up and retention services are

         10  needed to ensure that these disconnected youths stay

         11  employed and are connected to further education and

         12  training, so they can work their way up a career

         13  ladder.  Such a program would require long term

         14  engagement model, and would be based on the

         15  understanding of what jobs are available and the

         16  skills required for each of these jobs.

         17                 So again, thank you for having this

         18  hearing.  I think it is really important.

         19                 I would be happy to answer any

         20  questions.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Thank you.

         22                 Council Member James?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Mr. Reiss, do

         24  you speak to the Administration with regards to the

         25  development of high schools? The reason why I ask
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          2  that question, as you know, in Queens they are

          3  constructing a construction trade high school, a

          4  construction skill high school in Queens somewhere.

          5  And I see that we are moving towards thematic types

          6  of schools, but regarding your suggestion with

          7  respect to developing workforce focused on a

          8  specific trade or industry, whether or not we can

          9  develop other schools that focus on emerging

         10  industries.

         11                 MR. REISS: I mean, we do not directly

         12  work that often with the Department of Employment.

         13  We work with the Administration much more with Small

         14  Business Services, DYCD, HRA to the extent that our

         15  members have the Welfare to Work contracts.  I think

         16  that is an excellent recommendation.  I think my

         17  colleague Mark Levitan might be able to speak more

         18  about creating sector specific high schools.

         19                 I think one of the big lessons that

         20  we need to focus on though, is that it is not one

         21  size fits all, and that you know we need to focus on

         22  both getting people into careers and also getting

         23  them the educational credentials.  And I think, as

         24  much as possible, that we can have high school based

         25  vocational programs. I think that is important.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And what are

          3  the limitations of WIA?  And what other pot of money

          4  would best compliment WIA?

          5                 MR. REISS: Wow, there is a lot of

          6  limitations to WIA.  I can get back to you with

          7  detailed information about that.

          8                 I think one of the problems with WIA

          9  is you know, you get funding for twelve months and

         10  you are expected to solve all the problems in the

         11  world in just twelve months and you have a

         12  population that has multiple barriers to employment.

         13    So you tend, there tends to be kind of a scheme.

         14  You want to take the people that are most qualified

         15  out of your population.  And I think a lot of times

         16  that leads the populations that are harder to serve.

         17    Just because the funding is not enough.

         18                 I think any funding that is flexible

         19  would be really good to use with WIA.  I think NYC

         20   -- I know a lot of our members have supplemented

         21  WIA funding with NYC Works funding and with

         22  philanthropy dollars.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And the NYC

         24  Works, is that the program that the caucus

         25  initiated, or is it separate?
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          2                 MR. REISS: Yes.  Exactly.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And do you -- I

          4  have a part of my district where we have a

          5  significant number of disaffected youth who hang on

          6  the corner, and I do not believe that the best way

          7  to deal with that issue is arresting them.

          8                 The question is whether or not we do

          9  outreach or, not outreach but talk about the

         10  services that might be available to them?  Do your

         11  member organizations do that?

         12                 MR. REISS: They do, yes, as I think

         13  DYCD said earlier, they are tasked between massive

         14  outreach.  My organization also does technical

         15  assistance training for our 200 members that would

         16  help them figure out how to do those type of things

         17  and make them available, make them aware of

         18  resources that might be available to help them.

         19                 I can talk to you later about

         20  specific questions.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And lastly,

         22  budget requests this year, what is on your agenda?

         23                 MR. REISS: For my organization?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: For your

         25  organization or, yes, for your organization.  And
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          2  what initiatives are out there that we should focus

          3  on that deal with disaffected youth, workforce

          4  development, that we should keep an eye on,

          5  particularly the Chair.

          6                 MR. REISS: I mean, I would say the

          7  NYC Works funding that you have, I know that has

          8  really gone a long way to support the disconnected

          9  youth.  And I have had many members, you know --

         10  when I put together testimonies, they do a pretty

         11  comprehensive survey of my membership.

         12                 The top thing that they keep telling

         13  me is-

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: NYC Works.

         15                 MR. REISS: Yes, that it has been

         16  really helpful in helping them get, you know, engage

         17  this population.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And I guess

         19  maybe the Chairman can correct me, I guess the

         20  latest update is that there was a reappropriation,

         21  but not any additional new monies in New York City

         22  Works.  Unfortunately, because a lot of the old

         23  funds were not even out the door yet.

         24                 MR. REISS: Yes I know, I know that is

         25  an issue.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: That would be

          3  an issue.

          4                 MR. REISS: I would also say in the

          5  future, I know my organization is trying to craft

          6  out sort of a legislative initiative for career

          7  pathways and something separate around disconnected

          8  youth with our other partner organizations.  So, I

          9  would say that is something to maybe take up next

         10  year.  You know, I am thinking about you know, a

         11  number of my members said to me when I was putting

         12  this testimony together, we have all these kids that

         13  are at a fifth grade reading level.  We get them to

         14  a ninth grade reading level, it is huge.  But we

         15  cannot get reimbursed for that.

         16                 So, you know, this big level, big

         17  picture level, I do a lot of thinking about where

         18  the gaps are.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: And with that,

         20  and should the focus be on literacy?  I mean, is

         21  that a literacy initiative?  Or is that a workforce

         22  initiative?  Or where does that --

         23                 MR. REISS: I think for that

         24  population, it would have to be both.  I think that

         25  the -- and my organization has been doing a lot of
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          2  work with the literacy assistance center, which is

          3  kind of an umbrella of the literacy providers to

          4  really link our workforce development literacy

          5  funds.  I think about 50 percent of the literacy

          6  community and what they really want are workforce

          7  skills.  So, there is more and more the literacy

          8  programs are being contextualized (sic.) for work.

          9  I think for this population as others here have

         10  said, you have people that are very -- their

         11  experience with school has been negative.  They do

         12  not want to go back to a formal schooling situation.

         13    They are coming to a program like the programs my

         14  members offer, so they can get a job.  So, I think

         15  as much as people with very little literacy skills

         16  are trying to improve their literacy skills, I think

         17  it is as much as it can be contextualized within

         18  work, would be really important.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you.

         20  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: In your testimony,

         22  on page eight --

         23                 MR. REISS: For your sake, I did not

         24  read that far.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: I know you did
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          2  not, I know you did not, I know you did not.  But I

          3  have a question in relationship to it, because I

          4  have some concerns about it.

          5                 It says one in ten New Yorkers is

          6  between the age of 16 and 24.  But approximately

          7  200,000 of these individuals are out of school, and

          8  ill prepared for work or higher education.

          9                 MR. REISS: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: In addition, an

         11  estimated 50 to 60,000 individuals leave New York

         12  City schools without graduating each year.  So, if

         13  you were to multiply that over a five year period --

         14                 MR. REISS: That is a lot of people.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: That is a lot of

         16  people.  That is living in the City of New York.

         17                 MR. REISS: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Okay?  So you add

         19  that on top of the 200,000 and with the graph that

         20  the Community Service Society gave us in reference

         21  to that pie chart, I believe it was the difference

         22  between not in school unemployed and those

         23  individuals not in school, not in the labor market,

         24  not in school, I believe, unemployed, were those

         25  people unemployed that was looking for work? And the
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          2  biggest pie was 16 percent of people who were not in

          3  school and they were not looking for work.

          4                 MR. REISS: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: And that was a

          6  175,000.  So, when I look at those figures compared

          7  to your figures, they seem to be very similar, but

          8  it escalates.  So, I am looking at that 16, let us

          9  say 16, 17 and 18, right?

         10                 MR REISS: Yes, I mean the way I would

         11  make sense of these numbers and I --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Five years from

         13  now, that will put them within the 24, right?

         14                 MR. REISS: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: So, if you have

         16  that many, then we are talking about a huge amount

         17  in five years.

         18                 MR. REISS: Yes, it is a huge amount.

         19  I mean what I would make out of this is you know,

         20  you have people, this is the 200,000 is the 16 to

         21  24, so you know, in that five year, you are going to

         22  have the people that are now 19 to 24.  They are

         23  probably, unless they have additional interventions,

         24  I think NEW is an excellent example of you know,

         25  what in the best situation could happen.  But the
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          2  likelihood these people are going to join, you know,

          3  there are going to be unemployed adults  There are

          4  going to be adults who are under employed.  There

          5  are going to be adults who are going to be working

          6  in low wage jobs that pay eight dollars an hour and

          7  offer, you know, no benefits and limited mobility.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: And needs being

          9  created and perhaps seeking out ways and behavior

         10  patterns that do not fit the society, and that is

         11  why they wind up in jail.

         12                 MR. REISS: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: And we will wind

         14  up paying for them anyway.  So, we need more

         15  programs like NEW.  You know and we seem to have a

         16  lot of money, but people get into trouble.

         17                 MR. REISS: We do have a lot of money.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: We do not have

         19  enough money for people who have a desire to want to

         20  go to college who need some additional remedial

         21  studies, okay?

         22                 And we do not have money for people

         23  that is going be in both of those systems, the penal

         24  system.  But even before they get to the penal

         25  system, I do not think that from an economic stand
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          2  point of view, if I were to transform all of this

          3  into economics in the human factor, I am looking at

          4  250,000 youth who are unemployed around the City of

          5  New York.  I am looking at a small business owner in

          6  a community.  But because of the high crime rate,

          7  the insurance is costing him more.  Those

          8  individuals who are living in that are because of

          9  the high crime rate and people milling around

         10  unemployed, you are talking about high car insurance

         11  rates.  You are talking about a lot of things, that

         12  due to the lack of addressing this issue, poses an

         13  economic burden on the current workforce, that they

         14  did not ask for.  Everybody is not blessed with

         15  being able to live into a so called "gated or

         16  guarded community".

         17                 But I have a question about that,

         18  too.

         19                 MR. REISS: Sure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: And that a quality

         21  life living where you have to guard yourself about

         22  people coming in when you can afford to live the

         23  lifestyle you want, you should be able to be

         24  comfortable and you should not have to worry about

         25  people because of lack of work, people committing a
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          2  crime against you, even when walking on the streets

          3  of New York.

          4                 So, I think all of this ties in.  I

          5  mean, New York is a wonderful place to live, okay?

          6  However, we must make it a qualitative wonderful

          7  place to live, even for those people who do not have

          8  employment, we should evolve outside of the box, and

          9  I have heard that a number of times.  Encourage

         10  businesses, and we have to take a look at some of

         11  our economic development zones and our programs that

         12  we offer businesses that get tax breaks.

         13                 When we talk about incentives for, I

         14  do not like to use the -- resource sharing with the

         15  community, should have taken into account how on

         16  hiring individuals who come through NEW and other

         17  programs that were here, upon referral, who do not

         18  like the structured educational format.  But who

         19  might adhere to the format of vocational type and

         20  technical training.

         21                 I would like to add one more thing to

         22  suggest to you and to everyone that was here before.

         23    One of the things that I find that you know, if I

         24  was an employer, all right.  I think one of the

         25  things in training, NEW and Youth Works and
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          2  everything else. You have to have training in

          3  attitude.  You have to have an attitude in training

          4  component to that.  Because I think that attitude is

          5  a key ingredient to a person getting employed.  How

          6  to go through an interview with being employed  How

          7  to be a service person, be it at McDonalds.  I have

          8  been to a fast food place and they say, what do you

          9  want?  I mean that is not a way to represent

         10  yourself.

         11                 But is it their fault or is i the

         12  lack of training? Because all you have to do is look

         13  at the keys and they will tell you what to push for

         14  a Big Mac or a Whopper or whatever.

         15                 But you know, these little things, I

         16  think that you said something very important.  A

         17  person with a sixth grade education goes to the

         18  ninth grade and makes a remarkable difference.  A

         19  person with a ninth grade education that gets to the

         20  eleventh grade and makes a remarkable difference.

         21  So, when you get into the work world, okay, you

         22  might be working around people who they do not want,

         23  they could have a college degree.  But they do not

         24  want those kind of jobs.  They want those little

         25  jobs.  They do not want all the stress that goes
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          2  with it.  So, you have someone who is not as

          3  learned, working next to someone who is very

          4  learned, and there is no doubt in my mind, some of

          5  that knowledge will fall off the table to the person

          6  they are working along side.  And it might inspire

          7  them to want to go on and get just one more grade.

          8                 So, we are going to work on this.  I

          9  am going to speak with my colleagues and you know,

         10  it is something that is not a choice in doing.  It

         11  is something that we must do, we must address.  We

         12  have to encourage individuals such as yourself and

         13  your coalition and your program and the rest of

         14  those individuals who are in charge with this kind

         15  of responsibility, or have this kind of calling, to

         16  come forth, and help us shape something that would

         17  make sense, so that we will not be thinking outside

         18  the box. That we will take the thinking outside the

         19  box and put it in a box that can be identified.

         20                 I would say that I would be willing

         21  to entertain that and so that these individuals can

         22  be part of New York City, because they are going to

         23  be part of New York City whether we like it or not.

         24  But at least New York City will be, you know one, of

         25  the finest places to live.
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          2                 And I saw with my peripheral vision,

          3  my colleague lift her hand, so I cannot adjourn just

          4  yet.  I will call upon Council Member James.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Just a very

          6  brief question. I know you have a legislative staff.

          7    Have you looked at -- okay, a very able bodied

          8  staff.  Have you looked at the issue of whether or

          9  not legally, we as a body could tie tax incentives

         10  to a requiring that they hire locally or an

         11  undeserved neighborhoods or districts?

         12                 MR. REISS: I share an office with a

         13  wonderful group called Good Jobs New York.  So, this

         14  is a conversation in my office we have all the time.

         15    And as far as I know, I believe that to the extent

         16  that the City has leverage over the deals it makes

         17  with companies, I think legally you can require.  I

         18  think it would be -- I would have to get back to you

         19  on the specifics, but as far as I know, I think

         20  there are precedents for where subsidies can be tied

         21  to local job creation and issues like that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: If you can

         23  identify such precedent, and refer that to me.  I

         24  have been giving a battery of opinions on whether or

         25  not we can do that legally.  I know the power of the
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          2  bully pulpit, but the question is whether or not we

          3  can do that legislatively, is really the issue.

          4                 MR. REISS: Okay, I will look into it.

          5                 I also will leave you here today.  We

          6  did a testimony for the Small Business Committee in

          7  April, and they did research around kind of how

          8  other cities around the country fund their work

          9  force systems, and I know in San Francisco, for

         10  instance, there is a property tax that everyone pays

         11  that goes for youth services.  A big portion of that

         12  are youth employment services.  So, I have that with

         13  me, and I can leave it for you, but I did kind of an

         14  analysis.  Yes, an analysis of what other cities are

         15  doing around the country to raise money.  And a lot

         16  of them, they are tie, like the City of Boston ties

         17  their job, they have a tax basically for businesses

         18  that locate.  They have to pay into not -- housing

         19  fund, they pay a large chunk into housing fund,

         20  about seven dollars a square foot for every project

         21  that is a 100,000 square feet or more.  And I think

         22  it is 144 for a job development training fund.  So,

         23  it is like seven something for, I have the details

         24  with me.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Well perhaps a
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          2  fund, a developers fund for workforce development.

          3  Anyway --

          4                 MR. REISS: That is basically what it

          5  is.

          6                 Just one final thought also about

          7  what you were saying.  I think in terms of

          8  successful job programs, all of our members offer

          9  what we call sort of soft skills, which is really

         10  the life skills and working with employers.  And I

         11  think that is and work, and I think that is

         12  important across the board.  And I think in terms of

         13  engagement thinking kind of long term, I know what

         14  is really helpful for our members getting our people

         15  into jobs are the case management services.  So, to

         16  the extent that our members have private dollars and

         17  they can have a long term engagement model where

         18  people come back for a year or for two years or for

         19  three years, that is successful.  Because they have

         20  developed this relationship with someone in their

         21  community that understands them, that understands

         22  their skills, and the jobs they are looking for, and

         23  I think that is a good and successful model for how

         24  we get people, you know, not only into a first job,

         25  but make sure that it leads to a career.  And I
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          2  think that is another issue, that we do not have

          3  Federal funding for that we could think about.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WHITE: Well, I want to

          5  thank you very much for coming today and you have

          6  been very helpful and informative.

          7                 I want to thank the legal Counsel to

          8  the Committee, Fred, and to Dottie, the Analyst.

          9  And we will take all the suggestions that have been

         10  made under consideration and based on your input and

         11  we will shape something.  Hopefully we can work on

         12  together, to address this issue here.

         13                 So thank you.  The meeting is

         14  adjourned.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 3:45 p.m.)
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